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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREBEERASHN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon), aged 74, is the founder of
the Company and a member of Chaozhou Committee of Guangdong
Province of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(EEE MMM E#HZ 8)and was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company on 22nd November 2006. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a Cambodian
Chinese and prior to his establishing of a Hong Kong company in 1968
as an importing agent for watch distribution business in Cambodia, had
extensive experience of distributing watches in Cambodia and Vietnam.
Mr. Eav Yin is the father of Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson and Mr. Duong
Ming Chi, Henry and the spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a director and a controlling
shareholder of Century Hero International Limited, which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson, aged 39, holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Interior Design and Technology and a Master of Arts degree
in Art, Design and Visual Culture from the London Guildhall University.
After graduation, Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson has practiced in an
architecture firm in London for 2 years. Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
is a son of Mr. Eav Yin and a brother of Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry,
both are Executive Directors of the Company. He was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 22nd November 2006.

Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry, aged 51, was educated at the University
of Southern California. Mr. Duong has more than 30 years of
experiences in the watch branding and retailing industries. He was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 7th July 2011.
Before that, he was appointed as the Executive Director from the
listing of the Company in 1989 and subsequently resigned on 31st
August 1996 to pursue his personal career. Mr. Duong is a son of
the Chairman, Executive Director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, Mr. Eav Yin and is the elder brother of Mr. Eav Ming Keong,
Kinson, who is an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. André Francois Meier (“Mr. Meier”), aged 50, holds a degree
in banking. Mr. Meier has more than 20 years experience in watch
business. He spend his 12 years at Blancpain S.A. (10 years as vice
president and international sales manager). Mr. Meier is the chief
executive officer and director of Juvenia Montres S.A., a subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Meier was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 26th October 2011.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 56, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was
elected as the Vice Chairman, General Practice Division of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr.
Lai has been practicing as a professional surveyor since 1983 and has
considerable experience in the property field. Mr. Lai holds a Master
Degree of Business Administration from Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lai held directorship as independent non-executive director
of The Sun’s Group Limited during the years from 2002 to 2003.

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline, aged 44, graduated with LLB (Hons)
at King’s College, London University, UK in 1992, and was admitted to
both the UK Bar (Middle Temple, UK) and the Hong Kong Bar in 1993.
Ms. Wong is a practicing barrister in Hong Kong. She was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th
December 2006. She is also a member of the nomination committee,
the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 44, has more than 20 years
experience in accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of a
firm of Certified Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee
is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th December
2006. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee and also a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Poon Kwok Sing, Sammy, aged 55, joined the Group in 1989. Mr.
Poon has considerable experience in watch retailing, wholesale and
brand management. During the period from April 1992 to March 1993,
he was elected as the Director of the Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades & Industries Limited which is an official association representing
the watch industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Poon is the general manager in
charge of the Group’s watch retailing business in the PRC.

Mr. Leung Shing Yiu, David, aged 50, rejoined the Group in May
2012 as the general manager in charge of the Group’s watch
retailing business in the north east region in the PRC. Mr. Leung
has considerable experience in watch retailing, wholesale, brand
management and computer system management. He holds a Bachelor
of Science degree from University of Toronto.

Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, aged 46, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Cheng
has more than 15 years experience in finance and accounting. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and a Master of Science
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

agan
BIR[E515m A N
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
IR E
2014 2013 Change
—E-ImF —T—= BE
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEAET B&EET
Operations Fg—
Turnover B 967 1,099 (12)
Loss attributable to owners FEBRARQARAEA
of the Company Z B8 (153) (209) N/A
iE A
Loss per share — Basic FREE-EX (11.21 HK cents) (20.76 HK cents) N/A
(11.21584l) (20.767511L) &M
Interim dividend declared and paid BE M Rk 2+ RS = =
Final dividend proposed after WEARBERIRE
the end of the reporting period 2 AREARR B - -
Financial position B 75 RO,
Total assets BEE 840 1,053 (20)
Equity attributable to FBRAR A
owners of the Company BE AR 396 537 (26)
Non-controlling interests FE 2 A% A% R A 2 10 10 N/A
iE A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year was HK$967 million which was
12% lower than HK$1,099 million of last year. Gross profit margin
declined from 25% to 22% due to intense market competition. Sales
from mainland China were decreased by 35% to HK$461 million while
average same store sales in China were decreased by 16%. On the
other hand, sales in Hong Kong were increased by 32% to HK$503
million since the new shop opened on Canton Road generated more
turnover as compared with the one which was closed during the year.

The Group had adopted a prudent approach to close down 15 stores
(mainly non-profitable ones) but opened 3 stores in Beijing, Chengdu
and Hong Kong respectively including our Rolex and Tudor flagship
store on Canton Road which has been well received by the market.

The total number of stores is as below:

SR B515m MK i

3 e

AN E A @ 2 & 35 /967,000,000 T+ BRAF
[F] #1#91,099,000,000/8 7T N P&12% ° AT I5 3 F
B ERRW25% T [ FI22% © K B B oA REH 85 &
EA R, 1 35% £461,000,0005% 7t ¢ i B 15 [F] JE $5
BRI A16% - Z—HME ' BAMNHEEAEMI2%E
503,000,000/ : JYA B EREHIER¥E% - HER
FARAM G E  BSREZMEEE -

AEHERMBEEE WA TORER(EERET
AER) - BEDRELR  REBREEHFH =S5
BREEARZTISECIEMNERES N RERKRERSE -

IERAEMT

As at As at

31st March 31st March

2014 2013

R-ZE—mE RZE—=%F

= HEF=H EA=+—F

Beijing b= 7 9
Shanghai & 4 8
Shenyang &5 2 5
Chengdu [B% z 4
Hong Kong B% 3 4
18 30
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

Results review

The Group recorded a turnover of HK$967 million for the year ended
31st March 2014, (2013: HK$1,099 million) which was 12% lower than
last year. Sales from the mainland China decreased by 35% to HK$461
million as compared with HK$714 million of last year was due to the
slow down of the market and closure of non-profitable stores during
the year. Sales in Hong Kong increased by 32% to HK$503 million as
compared with HK$380 million of last year due to the fact that the new
Rolex and Tudor flagship store on Canton Road brought more turnover
as compared with the one which was closed during the year.

Distribution costs decreased by 14% to HK$353 million as compared
with HK$411 million of last year was mainly due to the decrease in
advertising, business promotion expenses, rental and staff cost due to
the closure of shops and tightening control in expenses. Administrative
expenses decreased by 28% to HK$34 million as compared with
HK$47 million of last year which was mainly due to the decrease in
equity-settled share based payment expenses in this year.

Valuation gains on investment properties increased by 77% to HK$14
million as compared with HK$8 million of last year as a result of the
increase in the valuation of the properties located in Hong Kong.

Other net loss amounting to HK$11 million this year was mainly
consisted of the onerous contract provision for some loss making
stores of HK$7 million and write off of assets due to closure of stores of
HK$3 million.

Finance costs decreased by 37% to HK$12 million as compared with
HK$20 million of last year was due to the decrease in bank loans during
the year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31st March 2014, the Group’s total cash balance amounted to
HK$40 million (2013: HK$119 million). The decrease was mainly due
to the repayment of bank loans and convertible notes during the year.
The Group has secured banking facilities amounting to HK$74 million
which were secured by certain inventories, bank deposits, leasehold
properties, prepaid lease payments, investment properties, rental
assignment, assignment of dividends and shareholder’s receivable
as well as unlimited corporate guarantee provided by the Company.
Gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as a ratio of total borrowing, over
total equity, was 46% as at 31st March 2014 (2013: 50%).

Foreign exchange risks

The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and Swiss Francs. The Group monitors its exposure to foreign
exchange risks, and when it considers necessary and appropriate, will
hedge its foreign exchange risks by using financial instruments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRB51:m MK D ifr

Prospects

The highly visible PRC government campaign encouraging frugality and
focusing on corruption had a large impact on gifting, which had been
one of the major growth engines of the luxury watches sector. This
campaign especially constrained the growth of luxury watches making
up over one fifth of the total domestic luxury market in China according
to the Bain study will persist for a substantial period.

The Group has basically closed down all its non-core shops in China
and cut corporate overhead. Baring unforeseen circumstances, the
financial performance of China retailing unit will further improve.

From 30th May 2014 to 12th June 2014, the Group had made its debut
of “FROM DAYTONA TO THE COSMOGRAPH DAYTONA. A PASSION
FOR SPEED” exhibition in Hong Kong in its Rolex boutique on Canton
Road.

The Group will close down its nonperforming shop in Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong when its lease expires in October this year.

The Group is determined to rebuild its financial strength and confidence
to turnaround its business.

On behalf of the Group, we sincerely thank for the kind and positive
supportive of our shareholders, customers, suppliers and associates.

12| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

RE

TREBRFEZTENRBSR BINEERESY
ZEBRABRATE  EHRFELERTEIZN
HRE N2 — - RIEBainW AR K EEL - Lt —EDL
HRHITEFEEZRTSRBI, 2 —NWRELRK
BIE R WA RERRRE -

AREEEA LT T BRE LD IEH A K HRE
CEMAS MBI EHRNEET  TREEEHEN
BRI A B — P = -

W—T—MERA=ZF+HE-_ZT—NFA+=-H " &
SEERRBENS L HEEELHTFROM DAYTONA
TO THE COSMOGRAPH DAYTONA. A PASSION
FOR SPEED M B AR E -

BEOFTAMEANINE  AEESBRAEURNE
FE R IE TS R R RS -

REFEREERZAFZUBEN  UREELTER

ERRAKE HERER FF  HEBMKBEBEALS
FTAEENEE S BABRRHE -

1R 2R

0

1

§ 4

i

EHARAE

e



The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 18 on the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in Note 18 on the financial statements.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2014 and the state
of the Company and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 36 to 134.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 32 on the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors have not declared any interim dividend (2013: Nil HK
cent) and did not propose any final dividend for the year ended 31st
March 2014.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 18 on the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 15 on the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 17 on the financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and

movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the
year are set out in Note 34 on the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of Company’s listed securities during the year.

BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 26 on the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st March 2014, the Group’s largest supplier
contributed approximately 42% of the total purchases for the year
and the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
top five suppliers represented approximately 87% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are approximately
1.5% of total sales during the year.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owning more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on pages 135 to 136.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Eav Yin (Chairman)

Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry
Mr. André Francois Meier

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lai Si Ming
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson, Mr. André Francois Meier and Mr. Lai Si
Ming shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

14| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited
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The independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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REBARFAR  BYFATEERABERE -

BUERABREECEFTHRARNFREMBERFY
B VEMASEER -FAK 2K IEAAFLEEE
OEERERIN 2IRIEAEH -

EFREBIOIBRASKRRMG  BFARMKRESD

Zigm

RZZ-—MF=A=+—B ARAEELTETH
ABEARBREEMAAEEE (EEE(EHFLBE
B (85 R A E RG] ]) SEXVER) ey - BRI
HEFETFEE  MRIEEZ LA RO EXVEETR
F8NEABMARF R ZAMERLRR (BIER
BESRMBEGRI 2 ZSHEXREREFRRER/ES
ZREZRARR) BB F R EERIFEI215HE
BIAMBIABRTHREFEZECMHEBEEBHER
SRARARZES EMHRR (T EmRAD M+ mE
ZETBETAERTETESFRIHNREST R ([REST
A1) EBAMARB LB ER ORRNT -

RAE2ASRMREMREARRB2ER

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

shares of aggregate

HK$0.2 each/ interests to

underlying total issued

shares held share capital

BESR BEREC BT

Name of Directors Nature of interest 02BTEER IR 45
BEEgR EHEE HERGHE BYESHK
%

Mr. Eav Yin BIEE Note ff i+ 800,507,473 58.57
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson IPLEE: Pt Personal & A 3,614,550* 0.26
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry HRELE Personal {8 A 4,089,600" 0.30
Mr. André Francois Meier André Francois Meier’t 4 Personal & A 10,022,061* 0.73
Mr. Lai Si Ming BEHRLE Personal 1 A 366,625* 0.03
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline Tt Personal {8 A 366,625* 0.03
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEFLE Personal & A 366,625 0.03
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Note: Among the 800,507,473 shares in which Mr. Eav Yin is deemed to have
interests under the SFO (a) 70,688,600 shares are personal interest of Mr.
Eav Yin of which 2,933,000 shares are share options, (b) 1,809,200 shares
are held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung (spouse of Mr. Eav Yin), (c) 582,421,337
shares by Century Hero International Limited, (d) 1,864,800 shares by
Debonair Company Limited, (e) 19,972,728 shares by Goodideal Industrial
Limited, (f) 2,550,672 shares by Hexham International Limited, (g) 2,846,536
shares by Goodness Management Limited and (h) 118,353,600 shares
by Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation (as a trustee of Eav An Unit
Trust). Century Hero International Limited, Debonair Company Limited,
Hexham International Limited, and Goodness Management Limited are
wholly owned and Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Mr. Eav
Yin. Eav An Unit Trust is a discretionary trust of which Mr. Eav Yin is the
founder, the beneficiaries include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife and their children.

& All the 3,614,550 shares are personal interest of Mr. Eav Ming Keong,
Kinson of which 2,199,750 shares are share options.

u All the 4,089,600 shares are personal interest of Mr. Duong Ming Chi,
Henry.

* All the interests are related to the share options held by the respective
Directors.

Save as disclosed herein and in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME”, as at 31st March 2014, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age had been
granted or had exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BFEREXS

The Group had made certain continuing connected transactions with HE-_ZT-—NE=A=+—BIMEMKEZHHE -
a connected person group during the four financial years ended 31st REBDHEBEATETE TEEBRERSS BN

March 2014, details as below: T
Transactions with the following entities are considered as continuing HUTERBRINERAEERTENSERERS °

connected transactions for the relevant years.

Name of party Relationship

£ 2RES

Eav Yin The Chairman and executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company

B RRBEFFRAITES RIERER

Connected Persons Group Companies ultimately controlled by an associate of Mr. Eav Yin and for the
avoidance of doubt, excluding the Group

FEALER BEABCEE—MBERAERHZAR - BREREB - TEELREHE

Lucky Linker Limited A member of the Connected Persons Group
FEALEERKE
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2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-mE —T-=F T-——H ZT——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HiE FET FET FET FET
Sales of watch movements to: HEFHBO T !
a member of Connected Persons Group HEATEEKE (iv) 1,869 4,471 6,343 1,498
Purchase of watch movements from: REFHBOH
a member of Connected Persons Group HMEATEEKE (iv) 359 - 1,276 12,430
Provision of subsidised advertising RUEBELEEBRTS
and marketing support to: BEEXE 7
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited (i) 3,000 1,950 937 -
Leasing of offices and warehouses to: HERAERAET :
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited (i) 264 126 126 126
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 866 564 509 86
a member of Connected Persons Group MEATEEKE 758 738 467 -
1,888 1,428 1,102 212
Purchase of products from: REBERH: (iii)
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 896 5,288 1,939 24
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 64 67 50 -
a member of Connected Persons Group BEATEEKE 67 456 58 -
Lucky Linker Limited Lucky Linker Limited 1,314 3,054 1,974 -
2,341 8,865 4,021 24
Note: Wit -
(i)  Provision of subsidised advertising and marketing support services () RUEBSEUERTEEBRIERE

The Group participated in the marketing programs and activities for
promoting and enhancing the image of branded watches supplied by Lucky
Linker Limited. In return, Lucky Linker Limited subsidised the Group by

paying an advertising subsidy to the Group.

(ii) Leasing of offices and warehouses

The Group leased certain premises owned by the Group to Lucky Linker
Limited and other members of the Connected Persons Group for rental

income.
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(iii) Purchase of products

The Group purchased products from Lucky Linker Limited and other
members of the Connected Persons Group including watches, watch spare
parts and components (including watch movements), watch accessories
and packaging. The Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing
and after-sales services such as maintenance and repairs to the Connected
Persons Group. The purchase of products includes the fees and charges for
these services.

(iv) Trading of watch movements

The Group conducted trading of watch movements with a member of the
Connected Persons Group.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(o) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties; and

(c) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, auditors of the
Company, has confirmed to the Company regarding the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above that nothing has come to the
auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that:

1. the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

2. the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Company; and

3. the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the terms governing such transactions.

The Company confirmed that it has disclosed the continuing connected
transactions and the details of the continuing connected transactions
mentioned above pursuant to the disclosure requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein the section headed “CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 Share Option Scheme is to
encourage qualifying grantees to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related consultant,
agent, representative or advisor of the Company or any subsidiary or
any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or consultant who provide goods
or services to the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iii) any
customer of the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any affiliate.

Refreshment of 2002 Share Option Scheme mandate limit (the
“Refreshment”) and amendment of rules of 2002 Share Option Scheme
(the “Amendment”) had been approved at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 26th August 2008. Details of the Refreshment and
the Amendment were contained in the circular to shareholders dated
1st August 2008. The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been expired on
20th September 2012.

The Company has issued 146,800,000 and 34,170,000 share options
to the qualifying grantees to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each in the share capital of the Company under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 of which the
exercise prices were HK$0.394 per share and HK$0.263 per share
respectively. Upon the completion of the share consolidation and
rights issue in January 2013 and February 2013 respectively, both the
exercise prices and the numbers of share options have been adjusted
according to the 2002 Share Option Scheme. As of 31st March 2014,
the outstanding amount of share options was 34,072,661.

The exercise price of any share option is the highest of (i) the nominal
value of a share; (ii) the closing price of the share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (iii)
the average closing price of the share as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

The validity period of share options shall be vested in the grantees over
a time period of five years commencing from the date of grant above.
For each of such five years, 20% of the share options granted to the
grantees will vest. The vested share options shall be valid for a period
of ten years from the date of grant and shall lapse at the expiry of the
option period.

The total number of shares available for issue under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme, the share award plan approved by the shareholders
of the Company on 13th September 2010 and any other share
option schemes, after adjustment made for the share subdivision in
November 2010, the share consolidation in January 2013 and the rights
issue in February 2013, was 58,782,332 shares which represented
approximately 4.3% of the issued share capital of the Company at 31st
March 2014. In respect of the maximum entitlement of each grantees
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each
grantees in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue.
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As at 31st March 2014, the Directors and employees of the Company ﬁé:g—@izﬁ = +— H X alEEhBEITHAR
had the following interests in share options to subscribe for shares LTREARNAFT —_SEET _FEBRESZUERERSB
of the Company (market value per share at 31st March 2014 was Tﬁ%zggﬂﬁﬁg%ﬁM_ EARNT T IRG (R-T—maE
HK$0.164) granted for a nominal consideration under the 2002 Share =B+ — B ERTTIEERA0.16475 7T) o 8 ik
Option Sc‘heme‘ of the Company. Th.e share opt|on.s are unlisted. !Each BIE L E %% 5— ﬁ%ﬂx%%ﬁ%?ﬁ*ﬁ)\a,u\ﬁﬁzli’z}ETO.Q
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary ST — B R HEF o
share of HK$0.2 of the Company. ! ORI
No. of shares
No. of share No.of  acquired on
options share exercise of
outstanding  No. of share options share  No. of share
at the options lapsed options options Period Period during
beginning of granted during during  outstanding during which which share
the year during the year the year at year end share options options are Exercise
£ the year ER EnfifE EX are vested exercisable price per
Directors HATHEN FRREN %%z BREES HATEN Date of grant 258 i share
£ BREHE  EREHE  BRRHEE  <RO®A  BREHA REAH BRENER BRENER BRIREE
Mr. Eav Yin 2,933,000 - - - 2,933,000 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
BCkE ZF-F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
ZR=t-A :2*,@ A=tH% “T-ZFZf=1HE
“E-REZAZTH “EC-FZfZ1H
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 2,199,750 - - - 2,199,750 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS$1.344
RRETE S 3 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 130457
=A=1-A -5~ *fi A=tRZ ZF-EZf=tHE
“E-3Ezfz1H :Z: F=A=1A
Mr. André Francois Meier 10,022,061 - - - 10,022,061 26th Octobr 2011 25th Qctober 2012 to 25th Qctober 2012 to HK$0.897
André Francois Meierft 3% 25th October 2016 25th October 2021 0.807ET
tAZT/A :f ZETAZTERE
“E-nE+AZTRA
Mr. Lai Si Ming 366,625 - - - 366,625 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS$1.344
BRALE 5k 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134487
ZR=1-A :S*ﬁ A=tRE Z%-Z§=f=1HE
“E-REZAZ1H “E--EZRZ1H
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline 366,625 - - - 366,625 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HK§1.344
I8fat ZR-F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134487
Zf=1-A Z5-ZEZAZTHE :E*ﬁ R=tHE
ZE-REZAZTH Z5Z-F=A=1R
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent 366,625 - - - 366,625 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
kL “3--F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
Zh=t-H “E-ZFZAZTRHE “E-ZFZfZTHE
ZE-REZAZTH “EC-EZAZ1H
Employees 26,616,975 - (8,799,000) - 17,817,975 31st March 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344
ET 5% 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134T
=R=t-H “%- *i A=tREZ Z5-EZA=tHE
“E-nEZAZ1H “E--F=f=1H
Total 42,871,661 - (8,799,000) - 34,072,661
it
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The share options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant
of the share options on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 were
HK$0.39 and HK$0.26 respectively.

During the year, 8,799,000 share options were lapsed under the 2002
Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the Company
or any of its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Director is
considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

In addition to the share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme as disclosed herein, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent on 31st August 2010, pursuant to
which the placing agent conditionally agreed, to procure placees to
subscribe for convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) issued by the
Company in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$100,800,000
on a “best-efforts” basis. On 27th September 2010, the Company
completed the placing of HK$100,800,000 Convertible Notes to
independent placees. The Convertible Notes carry interest at 3% per
annum and the principal amounts of all Convertible Notes shall be
due and repayable on the third anniversary of the date of issue. The
Convertible Notes entitle their holders to convert their outstanding
principal amounts into new conversion shares at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.84 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustment). Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Notes, the Conversion Price of the Convertible Notes was adjusted
from HK$0.84 per Conversion Share to HK$0.168 per subdivided share
as a result of the share subdivision approved by the shareholders of
the Company on 12th November 2010. The above adjustment took
effect from the close of business of 15th November 2010. Upon the
completion of the share consolidation and the rights issue in January
2013 and February 2013, the conversion price of the Convertible Notes
was further adjusted to HK$1.68 and HK$0.573 per share respectively.
The final adjustment was effective on 16th January 2013. The
General Mandate (2009), which has not been used before the placing
agreement, was used for the allotment and issue of the conversion
shares. On 27th September 2013, all outstanding Convertible Notes
have been redeemed by the Company.

22| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

ﬁ%“%$2%%%ﬂ%xi$z%%%ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ

NRERBEAA - R_E——F=ZA=+—RAK=-%F
——¢+H_+AE'$ Az BT EZER L
HERLRE B B AT 9 5l /0.39/8 7T %20.268 7T

FEA - RE-TT - FERME 28,799,000 Ik
ORI -

EEEERMAES 2@

B EXFTE SN AR R SREAEFEEEERFER
MER AT BEEFAEEBEAQFNE
] AR A B 88 2 B fn S B MR A a8 - B30\ AE
MEFKERBREFRET BRI ZFLERT
0] 4 M| DA SRS AR % B 3l E AT ) AR B R B 2 AR (AT £
HfEZ -

EBNMPORBECES

RAFEAREAREAL  TESEWRRABEL
MABNEREE EERFUBERGERRFZES
HERER -

o[ iR AR SE 5 ~ BEARIE - SRR IE 5H o I I i@

BE-ZTT ZFERER EIM MR TERENME
B ARFERERERZE—ZFN\NA=1T—HF]
VREHE  BREBHEAESREERGERAE  KIBR
Free | B BOWARARBRF A B ERESR
100,800,000/% T 2 AN A 7] 8417 2 AJ R IR 2= 4% ([ A3 A%
ZER]) RZZE—ZTFHLA=-1+tH ARAZEKE
#100,800,000/% 7T 2 Al AR Z 1% T8 L ABLA o AJ
BREEIAS% 2 EFRTE - AR AATBREZIEZ A
LB PRAERTANEZRERREE - ATk
REEE TERSBABREKRTEZ RS SEUEA
B D0.84B T EF AT RN (RTALME) °
BRI ERGER RGS  TRBRER 2 ESHRER
F—AEBERKRH0.84THEET —EIFAMR10.1687T
(HR=—Z—ZF+—A+=8  AATREMERD
i) - FMABR-_Z—ZFE+—ATHARSANK
TgER - -R-_TE—=F—AR=-%F fzifﬂ%ﬁ
AU REIRTERE - TRBRER ZERE D R —
FEEER1.68B L K0.573B L - ZEBFHABEN-Z
—=F—A+ X "B4E¥ - —REE(CZETN)ERES
WBEAIARER - R ERRHEITREERFEMA -
R-ZZE—Z=ZFNA=-+tH ARQRACELMAEHEK
ITER TR R EIE -

F‘FE N

=
e
i



On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share Award Plan 2010”).
The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share award
and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging or facilitating the
holding of shares by those selected employees of the Group who, as
determined by the Board, are eligible to participate in the plan and to
whom new shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use
of the plan to award new shares to those selected employees of the
Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for their contribution
to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
Save as disclosed herein, the Company had no other outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31st
March 2014 and there was no issue or exercise of any such other
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2014, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company or required to be notified under Section 336 of the SFO:
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ordinary shares
of HK$0.2 each/

underlying Approximate

shares held percentage of

BREE issued share

FRo.2}8 T capital

Name of shareholder Notes ZER EEBITRA

KRR EB M & HEROEHE BHES T

%

Mdm. Lam Kim Phung e Bzt 800,507,473 58.57

Century Hero International 3 B B B IR A A 2 582,421,337 42.61

Limited

Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Chanchhaya Trustee Holding 3 118,353,600 8.66
Corporation Corporation

Convenhills Limited Convenhills Limited 4 128,510,486 9.40
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Notes:

1. These shares include 1,809,200 shares held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung and
the remaining 798,698,273 shares represent the interest held by Mr. Eav
Yin, spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, whose interests are disclosed in the
above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Eav Yin who is
also a director of this company.

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is trustee of Eav An Unit Trust, a
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife
and their children.

4. Convenhills Limited is owned equally by the estate beneficiary of late
Mr. Leong Lou Teck, Mr. Leong Lum Thye, Miss Leong Yoke Kheng and
Mr. Leong Siew Khuen.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2014, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against such right under
Bermuda law.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There are 310 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2014. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends. Incentives such as discretionary bonuses and
shares under share award plan are offered to motivate employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 were
audited by CCIF CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint CCIF
CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and
professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th June 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year ended
31st March 2014 except for the deviation from the code provisions
A.4.1 and D.1.4 and those discussed below:

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director
shall not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as provided in the Bye-Laws. As the Company is bound by
the provision of the 1989 Act, at this time, the Bye-Laws cannot be
amended to fully reflect the requirements of the Code. As such, a
special resolution was passed at the special general meeting held on
28th March 2007 to amend the Bye-Laws of the Company so that, inter
alia, (i) every director (save for a director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) of the Company shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years; (ii) a director may be removed
by an ordinary resolution in general meeting instead of a special
resolution; and (iii) any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, instead of the next annual general meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, Mr. Eav Yin,
the Chairman of the Board has confirmed to the Board that he will
voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in order for the Company to
comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for re-election, he
may offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting. The
Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive officer
is divided between the remaining executive directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are not less
exacting than those in the Code.

Code provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should clearly understand
delegation arrangements in place. Company should have formal letters
of appointment for directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has not entered into any written letters of appointment
with its Directors. However, the Board recognises that (i) the Directors
have already been subject to the laws and regulations applicable to
directors of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, including the Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to
act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (ii) all
of them are well established in their professions; and (iii) the current
arrangement has been adopted by the Company for several years and
has proven to be effective. Therefore, the Board considers that the
Directors are able to carry out their duties in a responsible and effective
manner under the current arrangement.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner. The Company is committed to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance practices by emphasising a
quality board of directors, sound internal control, transparency and
accountability to all the shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the year
ended 31st March 2014.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and financial
performance. The management of the Group is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation of the respective individual
business unit.

The Board comprises four Executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the Directors are
set out on page 4 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of Executive and non-executive Directors also generates
a strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent
and objective decision making process for the best interests of the
Company.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to
be independent.

ZK/AETE?%Z%%ﬁi#%ﬂﬁ%$$ﬁﬂ““t?ﬂ‘%ﬁﬂw%3 13
BEHEBISOMBELZFERRER  MARQ
%%ﬁ%i#% TEEHBBEYAL -

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating EEeTHRe  UBRFNAEB VB RERERR -
performance of the Group. During the year, 5 Board regular meetings Zliiﬁ SEEERTRANTEHEE - i KREEDE
were held. Moreover, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration ZRBREBEER —KFMHEEegeE R
Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee meeting were }E%K;i@gpiv ZEeRZEET2BEVERELET
held during the year. The individual attendance of Directors in these HE
meetings was set out below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director meetings meetings meetings meetings
EspE EZggE EREEEEE FHZEEESR REZEE88R
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Eav Yin BIEE 5/5 N/A 78 1/1 11
Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson 15 BA 98 S A 4/5 N/A 3 A N/A i N/AT i A
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry AR E 4/5 N/A i N/A i A N/A i A
Mr. André Francois Meier André Francois Meierst 4 3/5 N/A7 35 A N/AT 3 F N/AT 3 F
Independent non-executive BIUFHTES

Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming HBERLE 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline THEIFZLT 4/5 1/2 1/1 0/1
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TiEHEYE 5/5 2/2 11 11

Mr. Eav Yin, the Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr. Eav
Ming Keong, Kinson and Mr. Duong Ming Chi,
Executive Directors of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there is

Henry who are both

no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among members of the Board or between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive
officer is divided between the remaining Executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are not less exacting than
those in the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a nomination committee on 1st April 2012. The
principle duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director, namely
Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung,
Vincent. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Eav Yin.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant
to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness. At present, the Board has not set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference have been updated during the
year in line with the revised Corporate Governance Code requirement
effective from 1st April 2012. The Remuneration Committee’s role is
to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure for Directors and senior management and to ensure that
they are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s
overall performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat
Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee
Tat Cheung, Vincent.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting to
advise the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director or
any of his/her associates may be involved in any decisions as to his/her
own remuneration. Based on the review and discussion at the meeting,
the Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board to approve
the Group’s overall policy and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2014, the total remuneration of the
auditors of the Group for statutory audit services and other services
is HK$1,654,000 (2013: HK$1,621,000) and HK$354,000 (2013:
HK$617,000) respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee in 1st January 1999 with specific
written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority and
duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s financial
reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues and to
make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue,
Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lai Si Ming.

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements. Based
on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board, among other things, to approve the interim
and annual financial statements of the Group.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the Company has arranged training for all the Directors
with a view to refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
34 to 35 of this annual report. As far as the Board is aware, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department, had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group including material controls over financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

In addition, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read out by the
chairman at the general meetings.

At the annual general meeting held on 26th September 2013, all
directors (except Mr. Eav Ming Keong, Kinson, Mr. André Francois
Meier and Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline) were present to answer
questions raised by shareholders and a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of Directors, and voted by way of poll. The Company
announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called and propose any matter to be considered
at the general meeting of the Company. The Requisitionists may
deposit the written requisition for special general meeting (which shall
specify the full name of the Requisitionists, the business and proposal
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company, and shall be
signed by the Requisitionists) to the principal place of business of the
Company for the attention of the Board. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting in
specified days as provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules, the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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PREIWS

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

Bye-law 103 of the Bye-laws of the Company provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office at least seven days before the
date of the general meeting. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Bye-law will commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
wishes to propose a person other than a director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting (the
“Proposal”), he/she should lodge at the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company at 19th Floor, 9 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong (i) a written notice setting out the Proposal; and (ii) a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of the Proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director of the Company, include the person’s
biographical details as required under rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and such other information (e.g.
contact details, including residential address, telephone number, and
HKID card/passport number, etc.), and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned.

The period for lodgment of above written notices shall commence not
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of the general
meeting. The Company is required under rule 13.70 of the Listing Rules
to provide the information about the Proposal in a supplementary
circular or by way of an announcement not later than 10 business days
before the general meeting. If the above written notices are received
by the Company less than 21 days prior to the general meeting,
the Company may need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of
such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing to: (a)
give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to
them any statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
address and fax number etc.) by the following means:

Address: 19/F, 9 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-28179043

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

2.  review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 1% SENER S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 36 to 134, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31st March 2014, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26th June 2014

Lam Cheung Shing
Practising Certificate Number P03552
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

nllT L) E‘ﬁﬁ%

For the year ended 31st March 2014 #HZ=_—=

—MFE=RA=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-MmF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Turnover EEX 5 967,353 1,098,593
Cost of sales S R AN (754,386) (828,534)
Gross profit EF 212,967 270,059
Valuation gains on investment properties ‘EMEZ HERE 17 13,791 7,792
Other revenue H Az 6 30,579 26,300
Distribution costs SRR (353,014) (410,967)
Administrative expenses 1TEE A (33,788) (46,673)
Other net loss H 518 F 58 7 (11,055) (34,957)
Finance costs B 75 PR AR 9(a) (12,470) (19,905)
Loss before taxation MRBATE R 9 (152,990) (208,351)
Income tax FriS %t 11 (196) (393)
Loss for the year AEEEIE (153,186) (208,744)
Attributable to: SHER

Owners of the Company AATEEA (153,278) (208,746)
Non-controlling interests FFERRRER 92 2
(153,186) (208,744)

Loss per share FREE 14
Basic (HK cents) EARCEM) (11.21) (20.76)
Diluted (HK cents) #sE (BW) (11.21) (20.76)

The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements.

FA4REF1B48 Z TR ISR Z R BB (D -

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
profit for the year are set out in Note 13.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

& O\
EE)

SmMiHMhFRREE

For the year ended 31st March 2014 #HE—-ZT—NFE=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-MmF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss for the year KEEEFIE (153,186) (208,744)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) NEFEHMEEmEE (FE)
for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently e e nERIB2E 2 TBE ¢
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINNBRARMEREREE
financial statements of overseas ZERETE
subsidiaries 8,405 (3,838)
Change in fair value reserve on revaluation EREAHEEREZ
of available-for-sale investments DR ERFEES 277 244
Item that will not be reclassified BErRETEENSBEEEEZEE ¢
subsequently to profit or loss:
Surplus on valuation of land and buildings T REFHEZ AR - 1,387
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) AEEHMRE2EKE (BE)
for the year (net of nil tax) (MBEZTHIA) 8,682 (2,207)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEHIEER (144,504) (210,951)
Attributable to: FEBR
Owners of the Company P N/NCE= 2SN (144,596) (210,953)
Non-controlling interests FEER R RER 92 2
(144,504) (210,951)
The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements. FAAB EF1348 2 MR B S 43k 2 B g 51D ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

n-lT O I\HVHXIR%
As at 31st March 2014 RZ=-Z—WF=A=+—H
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHEIT
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER =Y 15 19,225 42,230
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRIE 16 20,366 20,874
Investment properties "EYE 17 185,529 170,983
Available-for-sale investments ARHEZRE 19 7,527 6,300
Rental deposits and prepayments MEZES RFEMNKIE 29,433 26,971
262,080 267,358
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 469,341 569,071
Prepaid lease payments HEMEMNRIE 16 505 505
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A EUEE K 21 64,368 93,328
Trading securities BEEEE 23 3,676 3,845
Pledged bank deposits BEFRITER 24 3,303 2,272
Cash and cash equivalents BehkBFEEEYD 24 36,879 116,760
578,072 785,781
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E Al FE A BR R 25 206,377 207,876
Bank loans RITIEE 26 135,449 223,764
Convertible notes QRS 31 - 32,237
Loans from a director BECZER 27 52,000 14,000
Provision for store closure JE AR R 28 7,634 12,224
Current income tax payable BNEAFE B P15 B 3,548 3,137
405,008 493,238
Net current assets REBEEFE 173,064 292,543
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 435,144 559,901
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Rental received in advance WA & 2,042 2117
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 29 6,736 7,741
Other liabilities HibBE 30 19,886 3,016
28,664 12,874
Net assets EEFE 406,480 547,027
Capital and reserves N
Share capital & 7 32 273,373 273,373
Reserves & 34 123,306 263,945
Equity attributable to owners FEBREAABFEAZER
of the Company 396,679 537,318
Non-controlling interests I A% A% SR A 9,801 9,709
Total equity ERBE 406,480 547,027
Approved and authorlsed for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2014 and signed on its behalf by:
AZE—MFARAZHAAEREFTSRARKETIE YATINEEREKEE
Eav Yin Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
w1 A
Director Director
EE EBFE
The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements. FAAF EE134H 2 W B L B 5 iRk w BB E S -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B FSAA IR R
As at 31st March 2014 RZ-Z—F=H=+—H
2014 2013
—E-MmF =
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
o FET FET
Non-current assets kREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR Z S 18 248,759 270,229
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables H i JiE YL AR X 21 149 282
Cash and cash equivalents BekBE2ZEEY 24 17,154 65,455
17,303 65,737
Current liabilities FEBAaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET M B A AR IE 22 13,392 13,400
Convertible notes AR ER 31 - 32,237
Other payables H b FE AT BR 3K 25 2,830 3,429
16,222 49,066
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,081 16,671
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBAES 249,840 286,900
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE 29 - 1,005
- 1,005
Net assets EEFEH 249,840 285,895
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital i@ 32 273,373 273,373
Reserves L] 34 (23,533) 12,522
Total equity attributable FEREAQATAHEFA
to owners of the Company ZHBRER 249,840 285,895

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2014 and signed on its behalf by:
RZE—NERAZT RBESSESRBLREENE THATINEERREE

Eav Yin
Bz
Director

BF

The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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Eav Ming Keong, Kinson
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Director

BE
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The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

& O\ ay—]
RBIRERERXR
For the year ended 31st March 2014 #HE—-ZT—FE=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
M FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Loss before taxation bR B AT ES 1B (152,990) (208,351)
Adjustments for : FHE
Valuation gains on investment properties BEMEZ HERE 17 (13,791) (7,792)
Unrealised loss on trading securities FHEEBZAERER 7 169 3,253
Write-down of inventories, net FEZMRE - FE 20 18,925 21,056
Write-back of long outstanding payables BEORBAREEEMNRER
and accruals FEErER 7 - (469)
Impairment loss on other receivables HAth FE W BR FUR B 5 18 7 1,145 4
Bank interest income HRITF B MA (176) (216)
Interest expenses B X 9a 12,470 19,905
Depreciation e 15 27,873 32,161
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TH & T8 SR IE 8 16 513 499
Share-based payments expenses LARRD BERE 2 R X 2,952 8,850
Loss on write-off of rental deposits WA Sk e RIEMNRIE
and prepayments Z BB 4,861 8,172
Impairment of property, plant M - B MR 7 and 15
and equipment AR 7X15 - 2,350
Loss on write-off of property, plant MY - B R
and equipment Z &8 3,094 8,185
(Decrease)/increase in provision RS ERE OB D)/
for store closure 0 28 (4,601) 12,178
Exchange differences EHZER 1,348 (1,067)
Changes in working capital BEESEH
Decrease in inventories FERD 85,896 5,019
Decrease in trade and B 5 REMEY
other receivables AR 3O 20,709 17,033
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 & H M BR R
other payables CRi) /38 m (3,623) 33,736
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities HipaEmm, Cfd) 16,870 (9,310)
Decrease in rental received in advance W BR 78 W A8 € R 2> (75) (75)
CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) BEER/(CAREEZERSE
OPERATIONS 21,569 (54,879)
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid B zRBEPEMSHR (603) (2,696)
PRC Corporate Income Tax refunded Bz B FE AT S B R K 824 1,481
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ EER/ (CHR)EEEL2
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES R BE 21,790 (56,094)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Payment for purchase of property, SINAREWE MBEREE
plant and equipment (7,008) (38,891)
Compensation from write-off of property, MESE % - AR KRR
plant and equipment ZiEE - 1,235
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits D iKIHIRITEZR (SE A1), H (1,031) 1,693
Bank interest income received B U R 1T FLB A 176 216
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING EARKREER RS FEE
ACTIVITIES (7,863) (35,747)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REMEMER

—HF=A=+—HLFE

For the year ended 31st March 2014 #HZE—-=

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il & E
Net proceeds from issuance BATH RIS F 508
of new shares - 200,812
Proceeds from new bank loans %ﬁfﬁﬁ1§f§ﬁﬁ’a KIE 112,706 274,189
Interest paid on loans from a director EERIHZAE = (3,248)
Repayment of bank loans 1@5&%&71&% (201,487) (285,179)
Interest paid on bank loans RITEEINZFE (9,123) (12,553)
Interest paid on convertible notes AMBREESIAZFE 31 (692) (939)
Repayment of convertible notes BE IR R 31 (33,229) -
Proceeds from loans from a director WREBZEHRSHIE 27 62,000 21,000
Repayment of loans from a director BEEEZEN 27 (24,000) (72,000)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (BEAR)EERBEEEZ
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BHEFEE (93,825) 122,082
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH Iﬁﬁﬁfiﬁ%fﬁ%
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W), E (79,898) 30,241
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE ‘fﬁ?JJ ReERBEEZEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 116,760 86,146
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXSB o8 FH
CHANGES, NET 17 373
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FRESTHELEEY
END OF THE YEAR 36,879 116,760
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH RERBEEEYEHIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand RITEXRRFERS 24 36,879 116,760
The notes on pages 44 to 134 form part of these financial statements. FAAEZF134 B 2 MBI I 3Rk 2 B RS 201D -
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GENERAL

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in trading and retailing of watches and property leasing.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and 19th
Floor, 9 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong respectively.

These financial statements are presented in thousand of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26th June 2014.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$153,278,000 (2013: HK$208,746,000) and net cash inflow
from operating activities of HK$21,790,000 (2013: outflow
of HK$56,094,000) for the year ended 31st March 2014 and
had decrease in net current assets of HK$119,479,000 (2013:
decrease in net current assets of HK$22,609,000) and net debt of
HK$147,267,000 (2013: HK$150,969,000) as stated in note 35(b)
to the consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2014. In
preparing these consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to the impact of
the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group and the
Company and the ability of the Group and the Company to attain
profit and positive cash flows from operations in the immediate
and longer term.

On 29th February 2012, the Group was granted a long-
term loan of HK$130,000,000 by a bank which is repayable
by quarterly installment by February 2016. As of 31st March
2014, the remaining outstanding balances of the bank loan
was HK$74,260,000. Pursuant to the loan facility agreement,
an event of default would arise if the Group cannot meet the
financial covenants as set out in the loan facility agreement. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group was unable to comply
with certain of these financial covenants. The directors have
negotiated with the bank and obtained a waiver for the breach of
the financial covenants. In this regard, the directors considered
that the Group’s inability to comply with such covenants will not
result in any liquidity issue to the Group and the Group will have
adequate working capital to finance its operations. Accordingly,
these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOING CONCERN (Continued)

In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and liquidity in the
foreseeable future, the Group has taken the following measures:

. In June 2013, the Group entered into a term loan facility
agreement for HK$150 million with Mr. Eav Yin, a director
and controlling shareholder of the Company for a period from
27th June 2013 to 30th September 2014. The total amount
utilized under the term loan facility agreement as at 31st
March 2014 were HK$52,000,000. The Group renewed the
term loan facility agreement with Mr. Eav on 25th June 2014
for another year to 30th September 2015;

. the directors of the Company have been taking various cost
control measures to tighten the costs of operations; and

o the directors of the Company have reviewed the performance
of individual stores and plan to close non-profitable stores if
appropriate.

Based on the cash flow projections of the Group and having taken
into account the available financial resources of the Group and
the above measures, the directors have concluded that the Group
and the Company are able to continue as a going concern and
to meet their financial liabilities as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and
Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11
to that Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 4 provides information on initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2014 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 3(f)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or
as trading securities (see note 3(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 40.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entitles controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the interest
in subsidiaries is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
Note 3(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposed group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangement of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement
period (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, or
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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3.

ﬂ

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 3(s).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 3(i)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception
to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise by reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost
less impairment losses (see note 3(i)). Dividend income from
equity securities and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
note 3(s). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from changes in amortised cost of debt securities are also
recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 3(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in Note 3(s).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
Note 3(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in Note 3(h).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

3(0):

- buildings;

- other items of property, plant and equipment.

If an item of property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Construction-in-progress represents leasehold improvements
under construction and pending installation and is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes the costs of leasehold improvements and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use. When the assets concerned are brought
to use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the

following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on a
property-by-property basis and, if classified as an
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see Note 3(f)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.

(i)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely
the Company or Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in Note 3(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in Note 3(i). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for

each accounting period.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

U]

Leased assets (Continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

The Group leases retail stores and office facilities.
Most leases provide for monthly fixed minimum rentals
or contingent rentals based upon sales in excess of
stated amounts and normally require the Group to
pay insurance, common area maintenance costs and
other occupancy costs. The Group recognizes rent
expense for leases that include scheduled and specified
escalations of the minimum rent on a straight-line basis
over the base term of the lease. Any difference between
the straight-line rent amount and the amount payable
under the lease is included in other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Contingent
rental payments are expensed as incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease and is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position, is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 3(f)).

Impairment of assets

(i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities

and other receivables
Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. XESHBE(E8)
(i) Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) &EiEE(E)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i)  E#EERE

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- prepaid lease payments;

- rental deposits and prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

1)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
Note 3(i)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on a first-in, first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note

3(1).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 3(r)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a components of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
notes is measured as the present value of the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognized as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method. The equity component is recognised in
the convertible notes equity reserve until either the note is
converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the convertible notes equity reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability component
at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and
share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
note is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to
retained profits.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material,

stated at their present values.

these amounts are
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year
under review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

(g) Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the profit or loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. For the purposes of measuring
deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
properties are depreciable and are held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Current and deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively. Where amount tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
business combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of the debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair value of
financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged. had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with Note 3(r)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ji)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(iii)  Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follow:

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
the customer has accepted the goods and related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and after deducting of any trade discounts.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when
services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits, will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

®

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent;

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

3.

(v)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vil A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board
of directors of the Company for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSs)

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (HKFRSs) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit
or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that
would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of
other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in these financial
statements has been modified accordingly. In addition, the Group
has chosen to use the new titles “consolidated statement of profit
or loss” and “consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income” as introduced by the amendments in
these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. It introduces a single control model
to determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by
focusing on whether the entity has power over the investee,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and the ability to use its power to affect the amount of
those returns. As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to determining
whether it has control over an investee. The adoption does not
change any of the control conclusions reached by the Group in
respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1st April 2013.

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured
entities. The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally
more extensive than those previously required by the respective
standards.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any
material impact on the fair value measurements of the Group’s
assets and liabilities.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are trading and retailing of

watches and property leasing.

Turnover represents the gross proceeds received and receivable
derived from the sale of watches and property leasing and is

summarised as follows:

5. EX®

&

B §5 ER R B 5F

AEEZITEXBREZFEFRTEARYEE

BEENEENE RN EEE 2 CWRER 2 8
WE BEMT

2014 2013
—E-mEF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FrET
Sales of watches fBIRIHE 962,264 1,094,047
Gross rental income from investment properties HREREMEZHLSERA 5,089 4,546
967,353 1,098,593

OTHER REVENUE 6. Hfthlgz=
2014 2013
—2-mE —F=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank interest income RITH B UA 176 216

Total interest income on financial assets not IERERE AN EREENS R

at fair value through profit or loss BEMELENTEALE 176 216
Show window rental income FR 21| B8 A A LA 857 3,532
Gross rental income from sub-letting of a shop D —E/EFHFH S W A 2% 757 -
Promotion income HEUA 8,541 4,612
Advertising income EERA 3,233 2,032
Customer services income and others BRREKRA KR EA 17,015 15,908
30,579 26,300
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

(i)

(iii)

Store closure costs

The store closure costs for the year ended 31st March 2014
comprised of a loss on write off of leasehold improvements and
equipment of HK$3,053,000, other expenses for store closure of
HK$84,000 and write off of rental deposits totalling HK$4,861,000 for
early termination of operating leases.

The store closure costs for the year ended 31st March 2013 include
loss on write off of leasehold improvements and equipment of
HK$1,592,000, write off of construction in progress of HK$6,593,000
and write off of rental deposits and prepayments and compensation
totalling HK$8,221,000 for early termination of operating lease upon
closure of stores.

Impairment loss on other receivables

The impairment loss on other receivables mainly represented the
carrying amount of the rental prepayment exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Gain on early move out of a store

During the year, a supplier of the Group took over the operation of
a store in the PRC. In return for the early move out of the store by
the Group, the supplier paid a compensation of HK$4,728,000 to the
Group upon handover of the store.
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(i)

(i)

7. OTHER NET LOSS H A 18 IF 58
2014 2013
—E-0mF —T—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
s FET FEr
Unrealised loss on trading securities BHEECARBELRERS 169 3,253
Written off of property, plant and equipment LEN: Y ek 41 -
Impairment loss of property, M - HEE REREIREERE

plant and equipment (Note 15(h)) (H1zE15(h)) - 2,350
Store closure costs (i) JEHEER AR 7,998 16,406
Provision for store closure (Note 28) JE s SRR (1 2128) 6,599 12,178
Impairment loss on other receivables (i) o JE YR SR EES 1B 1,145 4

Write-back of long outstanding REIREREMNER
payables and accruals REEREE = (469)
Gain on early move out of a store (iii) IR AT )5 U e (4,728) -
Others Hit (169) 1,235
11,055 34,957

Note: Bt

SR EE %N

REBEE-_Z-—WNE-ZA=+-—BILFEEHEE
PR B 5 i 65 7 & P 3 8 18 ) 3% #63,053,00078 7T
ZE 1B - JE A E E B 84,0008 T B IR AT
IHE TR E ST € ke 6 4,861,000/ 7T °

REBE-_Z-—=F=-A=+-—BLFEEHEE
AR AR B IE I SH A B W) F 3 E R 2R 151,592,000/ 7T
Z 1R - E 7 B T 726,593,000 T 0 MM sE A
ERSREMFE REAEHRAMSER LS
M2 BB A ££8,221,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?”) for the purposes of resource
allocations and performance assessments. The Group has
presented two reportable segments: (i) sale of watches and (ii)
properties leasing. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form these two reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CODM monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note to the
financial statements. Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit
earned by/(loss) from each segment without allocation of central
administration costs such as those finance costs and corporate
costs which cannot be meaningfully allocated to individual
segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation and amortization of assets attributable to
those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
available-for-sale investments and other corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
current income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and borrowings
not attributable to individual segments and corporate liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SRR Bt 5T
8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. LB (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets LXT?%@EE AREBREDE &I - 3
and liabilities by operating segment. CEERBBEZOW
2014
—E-NF
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total  Unallocated Total
HERHEE HEWE D BEE RESE @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
External revenue Bz 962,264 5,089 967,353 - 967,353
Turnover (Note) EEB (W) 962,264 5,089 967,353 - 967,353
Operating profit/(loss) LR/ (BE) (142,813) 4,204 (138,609) (4,823) (143,432)
Valuation gains on investment BEMEZEERR
properties - 13,791 13,791 - 13,791
Interest income FEWA 166 - 166 10 176
Other net loss HthEEEE (11,836) - (11,836) 781 (11,055)
Finance costs B (10,786) - (10,786) (1,684) (12,470)
Segment results DEEE (165,269) 17,995 (147,274) (5,716) (152,990
Income tax FriEH (196)
Loss for the year AEEEAE (153,186)
Provision for store closure R E R 6,599 - 6,599 - 6,599
Loss on write off of property, plant ~ #1% « & kL BEHEHER
and equipment 3,094 - 3,094 - 3,094
Loss on write off of rental deposits &% & KRB FBEMEERE
and prepayments 4,861 - 4,861 - 4,861
Write-down of inventories WRAEE 18,925 - 18,925 - 18,925
Impairment loss of other receivables  E i EU B FR EE B 1,145 - 1,145 - 1,145
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 28,222 164 28,386 - 28,386
Segment assets NHEE 623,216 191,416 814,632 17,993 832,625
Available-for-sale investments ARNEZRE 7,527
Total assets BEE 840,152
Additions to non-current segment AREHRERHH D
assets during the reporting period AEZEM 16,983 - 16,983 - 16,983
Segment liabilities NEEE 412,028 8,030 420,058 3,330 423,388
Current income tax payable ENEAfE TS L 3,548
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAR 6,736
Total liabilities BERE 433,672
Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March M RBE_Z-—NE=A=+—HIFEHELE
2014. DEEHEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ¥ SR 2R Bt 51
8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. SYEPIBE (1)
2013
—2-=%
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
BHREE HEME DB E REHH @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FET FET FHET FET
External revenue M 1,094,047 4,546 1,098,593 - 1,098,593
Turnover (Note) SEE (W) 1,094,047 4546 1,008,593 - 1,098,593
Operating profit/(loss) TERR,/ (BR) (158,495) 3,593 (154,902) (6,595) (161,497)
Valuation gains on investment BEMEZHERR
properties - 7,792 7,792 - 7,792
Interest income FEUA 161 - 161 55 216
Other net loss HthEEEE (31,704) - (31,704) (3,253) (34,957)
Finance costs BHSHUAR (16,148) (453) (16,601) (3,304) (19,905)
Segment results SHLE (206,186) 10,932 (195,254) (13,007) (208,351)
Income tax FrEH (393)
Loss for the year AEEES (208,744)
Provision for store closure EREERE 12,178 - 12,178 - 12,178
Impairment loss of property, plant mE BERIBREER
and equipment 2,350 - 2,350 - 2,350
Loss on write off of property, plant ~ #1% « R KL EMHER
and equipment 8,185 - 8,185 - 8,185
Loss on write off of rental deposits M &% & kBN FREMEEE
and prepayments 8,173 - 8,173 - 8,173
Write-down of inventories WREE 21,056 - 21,056 - 21,056
Impairment loss of other receivables  H ft & Y bR 2R (B B 12 4 - 4 - 4
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 32,148 512 32,660 - 32,660
Segment assets NHEE 803,237 177,337 980,574 66,265 1,046,839
Available-for-sale investments AHEZRE 6,300
Total assets BEE 1,053,139
Additions to non-current segment AREHRERHH D
assets during the reporting period BAEZEM 45,184 7 45,191 - 45,191
Segment liabilities SBEE 438,199 20,859 459,058 36,176 495,234
Current income tax payable ENEAFE 43 P15 20 3,137
Deferred tax liabilities BEHBARE 7,741
Total liabilities BERE 506,112
Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March Mt RBE-_Z—=F=-A=t+—BILEEHHLE
2013. DEHEEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. HNaBIRE (48)
(a) Geographic information (a) KEHERER

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments,
investment properties and rental deposits and prepayments.
The geographical location of customers is referred to the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical locations of non-current assets
are based on the physical location of the assets.

AT AR EE R INDE P 2 W (i) A
SEZWE - WERSRE AEBEMARE
BEMERAE RS REMRIE TR EE
HE2EGRERSKEYER 2 2B - &
EHEZFRDEERSENEEZ BRI
EE & -

Revenues from

external customers Non-current assets
REMBEFZWE ERBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T—= —E-mFE —T—=
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FHET
The People’s Republic of hEARKEFE -

China, excluding Hong Kong FEBKRIN 461,122 713,516 65,957 102,458
Hong Kong (place of domicile) EE(REH) 502,909 380,347 170,266 140,044
Switzerland It 1,872 4,717 18,330 18,556
Others HAfb 1,450 13 - -

967,353 1,098,593 254,553 261,058
(b) Information about major customers (b) BAREBEFEHR

For the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2013, no revenue
derived from transactions with a single customer represented
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ¥ SR 2R Bt 51
9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 0. BiFIER
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREATEEBE N, (G A) U TEIE
(a) Finance costs (a) B FERY AR
2014 2013
—E—mF —F—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ARRAFRNEHBEEZ
repayable within five years RITERFE 8,355 13,353
Interest on convertible notes AR EER A 1,684 3,304
Interest on loans from a director EEERAE 2,431 3,248
Total interest expenses on financial FERBREANBERENS M
liabilities not at fair value through BEMELENTEXZ LB
profit or loss 12,470 19,905
(b) Staff costs (b) SIpiAK
2014 2013
—E-lmEF —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IERHEMBER
(including directors’ fee and emoluments) (BIEZEEEL ML) 73,962 97,014
Share-based payments expenses AR BEREZ AR 2,952 8,850
Retirement benefits scheme contribution R R A8 FIFT 8 50 803 844
77,717 106,708
(c) Other items (c) EHfthiaB
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Rental receivable from investment KREMERKHESMBEERZSZ N
properties less direct outgoings 161,0008 7T (Z T — =% :
of HK$161,000 (2013: HK$86,000) 86,000/% 7T (4,928) (4,460)
Net exchange (gain)/loss EN (k) EiaFs (1,444) 96
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ELAD B &
Audit services Z R 7 1,654 1,621
Other services HoAth B 75 354 617
Depreciation for property, plant and W WBERBETE
equipment 27,873 32,161
Amortisation for prepaid lease payments HEBNRIEH 513 499
Impairment loss on other receivables H e U BR SURVE B 18 1,145 4
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMEZKEHERS
rented premises
— Minimum rentals - xEHEE® 204,449 209,857
- Contingent rentals - Al 2,593 10,167
207,042 220,024
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses /A5 X 2 17 &K 754,386 828,534
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(i) Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

10.

(i) ZEEME

ESHEREESMEAL

IRIBFT BB QRGN (F622F) i&X11578
E(2EBRIEBRTEN ($325F) £16115)

(cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor JEEMEERBELT ¢
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (cap. 32) is as follows:
2014
~E-mE
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances to retirement
Directors’ Basic and other benefit Share-based
fees salaries benefits scheme Sub-total payments Total
BER BUEA NRGBAER
EzHe Exge AtER HEEEHR it PAES @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FE7 FEn FEn FET FEn FE7 FE7
Executive Directors HiTES
Eav Yin B 238 4,175 1,157 - 5,570 403 5,973
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson L 238 2,099 752 15 3,104 302 3,406
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRE - - - - - - -
André Francois Meier André Francois Meier - 2,982 3 16 3,001 1,370 4,311
476 9,256 1,912 31 11,675 2,075 13,750
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHTES
Lai Si Ming BER 238 - - - 238 50 288
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline IAF 238 - - - 238 50 288
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TER 238 - - - 238 50 268
14 - - - 714 150 864
1,190 9,256 1,912 31 12,389 2,225 14,614
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

B §5 ER R B 5F

10. ESHERRSHEAL ()

(i) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (i) ZEESBM2 (&)
2013

ZE-ZF

Employer's

contribution

Allowances  to retirement

Directors’ Basic and other benefit Share-based
fees salaries benefits scheme Sub-total payments Total
2R RN DR BER
vk X5 EEN HARTAN I PALYS &t
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET AT AT FET FAT FAT
Executive Directors y17E3
Eav Yin BE 238 4175 993 - 5,406 642 6,048
Eav Ming Keong, Kinson EES 238 2,099 624 14 2,975 481 3,456
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRE - - - - - - -
André Francois Meier André Francois Meier - 4,964 - 16 4,980 2,287 7,267
476 11,238 1,617 30 13,361 3,410 16,771
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Lai Si Ming BEH 238 - - - 238 80 318
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TAF 238 - - - 238 80 318
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TER 238 - - - 238 80 318
714 - - - 714 240 954
1,190 11,238 1,617 30 14,075 3,650 17,725

Note: Htat -

1) There was no arrangement under which a director waived or 1) RZIZE—=FR-T—MF=A=+—HI
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31st FEHAM - WHEEERES RS WE TR
March 2014 and 2013. 2T

2) No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as 2) REBEEZZ—=F2"Z—NF=A=+—
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as BltzFE  AEBEVEINTFESEAR
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31st March SIEMAKRINAREE R - SKEABERM®
2014 and 2013. Bz -

3)  As at 31st March 2014, the directors held share options under 3) RIZT—NF=A=+—R0 EEFREAA
company’s share option scheme. The details of the share BT A ERE - BREFERES
options are disclosed under the paragraph “share option ks 2 [HEARHE 2 518 ) B R 5E33(a)F 1
scheme” in the report of the directors and Note 33(a). o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. ESMMERESME AT (8)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(ii) Individuals with highest emoluments (i) E=MEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three Al HALTH = (ZE—=ZF: =
(2013: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed i) EE 2B &AM FE106)4H 5 o Hah=fL
in Note 10(j). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of EREEEB(ZT—=ZF: —U) ATFRZ
the other two (2013: two) senior management is as follows: e @zEmT :
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Basic salaries, allowances and other BEA¥F ¢  FZAREMEF
benefits 3,190 3,000
Performance related incentive payments FB LB KRIA 131 97
Employer’s contribution to retirement RRAEF GBI F R
benefit scheme 30 28
Share-based payment expense LARR 17 B B/ 2 43K 194 307
3,545 3,432
The emoluments of the remaining two (2013: two senior BT AaREEE(—ZE—=F: —fUakERE
management) senior management with the highest B)SSH AT Z2HMENF T3 &EE

emoluments are within the following bands:

Number of individuals

A"
2014 2013
—E-mF TR
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/& 7T - 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7t - 2,500,000/%8 7T 1 1
2 2
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11.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

1. REBREAZFRGH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B §5 ER R B 5F

OR LOSS
2014 2013
—F-mF =F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax BVHATR 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax R EFTISH
— Charge for the year —RNEEMRBM 530 2,135
- Tax refund — BRI (824) (1,481)
Under-provision in respect of prior years NAFEREBTR
PRC Corporate Income Tax RERERER 490 48
196 702
Deferred tax EER IR
Current year KEE - (309)
196 393

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in these
jurisdictions.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group did not have any
estimated assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the years ended 31st March 2014 and 20183.

Taxation for the PRC subsidiary companies is provided at the
current tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%).

The subsidiary in Switzerland is subject to Switzerland Profits Tax
at the rate of 24% (2013: 24%). No Switzerland Profits Tax has
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements as the
Group did not have any estimated assessable profits subject to
Switzerland Profits Tax for the years ended 31st March 2014 and
2013.

BREAREMNEBREIEENRRIER A&
BELEREEERBAMMIMMAEH -

HAREERBE_T—=FR_T—NF=A
=t RLEZFEEEAMBRRLEBERMAT
FERBLE A - ML A BB NS TR LB

FERMBARZHEBUEE 2 RITHEA25% (=
T— =4 25%) EHI B -

R T 2B AR TRSEREAR24% (ZE—=
Fi24%) REE_ZT—Z=ZFK_FT—NF=
A=Z+—BLFE BARAEETEZRITFE
MEBEZEMGFTERR R  BRARTFE
MR M REPEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

11.

12.

13.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 11. &8

OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting loss at

applicable tax rates:

SRR ZPhE

S (48)

BIARX EEtBRIZERARERAE 2 Bk

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before taxation B B A ES 1B (152,990) (208,351)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, Tﬁﬁﬁﬁl%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂé # i A
calculated at the tax rates applicable to EAHEORBIAIEE
losses in the countries concerned Z%R | (33,347) (45,058)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses EMB ETENMR 2 H 2 RETE 18,317 34,979
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERBEEATRMIBAZRB R E (10,843) (5,109)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AWERCHEBE HEYE 28,762 12,562
Tax effect of temporary REERCERER
difference not recognised 2GR 141 4,461
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences B 1E & ¥ F /9 7] H157 & A
previously not recognised ERIOBMGHE (1,366) -
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses FRREEACREBEZRETE (1,134) (9)
Tax refund FTiSfiR R (824) (1,481)
Under-provision in prior years NAEFERETRE 490 48
Actual tax expenses ERBEES S 196 393

There was no income tax relating to components of other

HE_T—=FKk=%

—mMFE=R=+—HIF

comprehensive income for the years ended 31st March 2014 and B EAEEMEEWRBEAKRND ZFTETR -
2013.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 12. SBERARLASIISEBAZEIS

The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the Company % 2R RN B AE A 2 A E 18 8 1540,012,000
includes a loss of HK$40,012,000 (2013: HK$224,949,000) which 5 7T (20134F © 224,949,000 ) 7 518 « H
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. ERRNARZHERERFRIE -

DIVIDENDS 13. B2

The directors do not propose any payment of final dividend for the EETEZRBHE_ZT—=ZFR_T—NF=

years ended 31st March 2014 and 2018.

82| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

A=+ B2 EARBBRE -

i

%#

%HF

F‘H:i N



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$153,278,000
(2013: HK$208,746,000) and the weighted average number of
1,366,866,000 ordinary shares (2013: 1,005,677,000 ordinary
shares) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share
for the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2013 because the
outstanding convertible notes had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share.

The share option had no dilutive effect because the average
market price of ordinary shares did not exceed the exercise
price of the share option for the years ended 31st March
2014 and 2013.

B §5 ER R B 5F

14. BIREI8

(a)

(b)

BREBKRGEA

Tk E m%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬂﬁkﬁAﬁw
&5 18153,278,0008 T (=T — =
208,746,000/ L) LW ERFREITZ
1,366,866,0000% & @A MNIEFHH (= F
— =4 :1,005,677,0000% L @A) 5T & -

BREMEER

REE_T—=FKk-T—HNF=A=+—
ALSEEREESEBRSENTRERNE
B ARMKRITEZATMBREREGRER
ElEEREBEXE -

BRI EHEFLE AREERRZTY
ERTEBEBBE_T—=FR-_Z—MN
—BIEEEZBBRETEE -

+ 3
[1]
il
1]
+%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Bf 5
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥A% - IR E Rk
(a) The Group (a) HEE
Furniture, Leasehold  Machinery
Land and fixtures and improve- and Motor Construction
buildings fittings ments  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE R HE B
THRER REE  NERE R#f "E  HEBIRE aa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEx FET FET FEx FET FET
At 1st April 2012 R-E-—-£mA-A
Cost AR 17,509 3,338 62,656 25,535 2,885 11,380 123,303
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (6,987) (2,718) (42,973) (18,848) 2,117) - (73,643)
Carrying amount FHFE 10,522 620 19,683 6,687 768 11,380 49,660

Year ended 31st March 2013 CE-ZEZRCT-HIEEFE

Opening carrying amount HEEFE 10,522 620 19,683 6,687 768 11,380 49,660
Translation differences BEEE (304) - (146) (187) - 433 (204)
Additions NE - 66 4,788 2,943 - 31,094 38,891
Transfer B - - 36,314 - - (36,314) -
Transfer to investment EESIES S

properties (Note 17 and 15(g)  (H/#£17%15(g) (2,186) - - - - - (2,186)
Write off it - - (2,808) (19) . (6,593) (9,420)
Impairment (Note 15(h)) BB (H150) - - (2,310) (40) - - (2,350)
Depreciation charge FEH (319) (392 (1379 (3,562) (515) - (32161)
Closing carrying amount BAREFE 7,713 294 28,148 5,822 253 - 42,230
At 31st March 2013 RZE-=5=f=1-H
Cost KAE 10,352 3,406 94,199 27,469 2,885 - 138,311
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (2,639) (3,112) (66,051) (21,647) (2,632) 4 (96,081)
Carrying amount REFE 7,713 294 28,148 5,822 253 - 42,230

Year ended 31st March 2014 ~ —Z—ME=A=+—-HIIEE

Opening carrying amount HOEEFE 7,713 294 28,148 5,822 253 - 42,230
Translation differences BEER 332 - 382 240 - - 954
Additions RE - 40 5,876 1,092 - - 7,008
Write off 8 - 2 (3,053) (39) - - (3,004)
Depreciation charge FEZH (281) (207) (24,417) (2,771) (197) - (27,873)
Closing carrying amount BRERFE 7,764 125 6,936 4,344 56 - 19,225
At 31st March 2014 RZZE-WE=ZRA=+—-A

Cost RAE 10,806 3,446 64,652 27,621 2,885 - 109,416
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE (3,042) (3,321) (57,716) (23,283) (2,829) - (90,191)
Carrying amount FEFE 7,764 125 6,936 4,344 56 - 19,205
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land and construction in progress are not depreciated

Leasehold land 2% or over the remaining terms
of the leases, if shorter

2 - 4% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter

15-20%

5 -50% or over the remaining
lease period, if shorter

20 - 50%

20%

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

The analysis of the carrying amounts of land and buildings is
as follows:

15. % - BB R

(b)

(c)

B §5 ER R B 5F

(48)

ME - BB RREUNBRERTINFEFE
wE:

KAEH T W RAER TR T RITE

HELH 2%k LA & T F H
(BB E B%E)

gF 2 - A% BT
FH (UAREE BE)

RE -REREE 15-20%

THEWmERE 5-50% L ALABT
FH(UAREE B%E)

2SR A 20 - 50%

RE 20%

THRETFZHREEIFTAOT

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Land and buildings THREF
In Hong Kong REB
Long-term leases REBHEE 748 841
Outside Hong Kong BB SN
Medium-term leases FREIFE 2,315 2,374
Freehold KA FERE 4,701 4,498
7,764 7,713

Freehold land owned by the Group is located in Switzerland,
which has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not
depreciated. The carrying amount of the land as at 31st
March 2014 is HK$4,701,000 (2013: HK$4,498,000).

The land and buildings owned by the Group are located in
the PRC, Hong Kong and Switzerland.

At 31st March 2014, land and buildings of HK$733,000
(2013: HK$3,198,000) were pledged as securities for bank
loans as detailed in Note 37.

The land and buildings with carrying amount of
HK$2,186,000 transferred to investment properties
during the year ended 31st March 2013 were revalued at
HK$3,573,000. The revaluation surplus of HK$1,387,000 in
respect of the land and buildings upon the transfer were
recognised in other comprehensive income.

HASEREAKARE LRt - %
BARHRZERFHRALTTIHE - R =
T-EOE=ZA=+—R LHZKREESES
4,701,000/ 7t (= F — = £ : 4,498,000/8
oTE)

MAKEER 2 LW REFHURTE - F
BNt -

WZ_ZE—mE=ZA=+—H  733,000/5 T
2t RIEF (T E—=4 3,198,000/ T)
EEAIRITERZEE - FHEHMRM 37 ©

RZE—=F=-A=+—HBLFEHH &
H1{62,186,000/8 L2 T R IEFHE =&
B Y ¥ E fh A3,573,0008 7T R EEE 5h
+ 3} 1 5 & 4 2 $21,387,00078 JT £ E A
2HEREPHER -
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B 5 ER 2R Bf 5
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. % - B SeR1E (8)

(h)y During the year ended 31st March 2013, the Group (hy REE-_ZT—=F=A=1+—HLFE" A
recognised an impairment loss of HK$2,310,000 on leasehold RERERS G —BEREAKLEAERE
improvements as a store was closed subsequent to the MG AEEEHEYEREEDRES
reporting period by early termination of tenancy agreement. 162,310,000 T - EE=R R AT E & HE
The directors are of the opinion that the recoverable amount HMEBRENEETD S5 -

of the balance was less than its carrying amount.

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. & RIA
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —ZE—=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1st April ®rEA—H 21,379 21,627
Translation difference MEERE 5 251
Amortisation 5 (513) (499)
At 31st March R=A=+—8 20,871 21,379
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEBHEBENRIERE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Long-term leases in Hong Kong REAZRPHEE 1,069 1,075
Medium-term leases in the PRC RPBEzHEHEE 19,802 20,304
20,871 21,379
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Analysis for reporting purposes as: ERBEBNZDW
Current portion BB 505 505
Non-current portion JERBNEB D 20,366 20,874
20,871 21,379
At 31st March 2014, certain prepaid lease payments of RZZE—NFE=A=+—H - &T1E{E524,000/&
HK$524,000 (2013: HK$20,833,000) were pledged as securities for T (ZF— =4 : 20,833,000/ 70) MHEEFEF K
bank loans as detailed in Note 37. HERITEFIEIR - sFEHNMIFE37 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. RE&EME
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —ZT—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At valuation HEIE
At 1st April REA—A 170,983 159,599
Translation difference BmEZ®H 755 19
Transfer from land and buildings (Note 15(g)) Mt RAEFE R (7 5F15(9)) - 3,573
Fair value gains DA B 13,791 7,792
At 31st March R=A=+—H 185,529 170,983
The Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are measured AEBEBEFUBIASHYERSITIEAAAE
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as ERHE IDERINEEYEAE -
investment properties.
Note: Bt -
(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties (a) BREMENARAEHNSE
(i) Fair value hierarchy () DT EER

The following table presents the fair value of the TREBNAREBN G EAREHRIZKEE

Group’s investment properties measured at the end of HEMAEMREMENLE - ZZEY

the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised OB A(E B EIREAER])FE1358 —

into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined [ArhEFEITRAEHN ="RAALEE
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level B o NEBRBIA T EES EFREBL

into which a fair value measurement is classified BMABENEREEMEEN - M

is determined with reference to the observability TALEEHEMERENEBL

and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: based on quoted prices o F—MIiEE: BREBREERE
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets BERERME Z REHEBERE o
or liabilities.

° Level 2 valuations: based on valuation techniques . FE_HMEE: BEHALEEE
for which the lowest level input that is significant EEAXE JFEGARETE
to the fair value measurement is observable, either B EEEER2GERE -
directly or indirectly.

° Level 3 valuations: based on valuation techniques . FE=HEE BEE AL EEE
for which the lowest level input that is significant BEEAZE 7 5 EKE ASERT]
to the fair value measurement is unobservable. R JGEFE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BBEWE (@)
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENAARMBHE (6)
() Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) D EERE)
Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2014 categorised into
R-ZE—NME=A=+—H=Z
ARBEFEDE
Fair value
at
31st March
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-Z—WmF
=A=+-—8H
ZARE F1BH F2B R EIEBH&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET
Recurring fair value KEHERARE
measurement 2
Investment properties: & ¥ % :
- Hong Kong —&BB 140,600 - - 140,600
— Mainland China — R B KB 34,141 - - 34,141
- Switzerland —Im* 10,788 - - 10,788
185,529 - - 185,529
During the year ended 31st March 2014, there were no REBE-_T-MF=A=+—HILLHF
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into B EE-HEZERKHALEDIRE
or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise MRAREEE  TEEAIAEEAS
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the —ERRBEZEREL - KREENK
end of the reporting period in which they occur. REEAAEERZAHRBERHRE

HemisRaRE

AEENMEREMECKR - —NF
ZR=+—RH#TERH - REBRF
EEEMENGEIERES KB
3o BEMNEERGER DTZEE 2T
BRARETT A BRI EES S
MR PR S MERIIE R T A

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31st March 2014. The valuations of investment
properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC were
carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, a
firm of independent professional qualified valuers in
Hong Kong and the PRC with recent experience in

the location and category of properties being valued.
The valuations of investment properties located in
Switzerland were carried out by Pierre Berest S.A.,
a firm of independent professional qualified valuers
in Switzerland with recent experience in the location
and category of properties being valued. The Group’s
finance manager and the chief financial officer
have discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date.
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. 1BEWE (@)
(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) KBREMENARMEE (8B)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) FEZERIgETEEH
Relationship of
Range or unobservable
Valuation Key weighted inputs to
techniques unobservable inputs average fair value
BRER DRERT
EYEEE TEFABREZEE REF BRYEBRRE
Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) (19)%-5% The higher
located in the PRC approach to transaction price the adjusted
NRHBEZIREYE i E % (to reflect location transaction price,
age and maintenance) the higher the
wiE/ () X 5B fair value
(ARBIE  BRRFEE) HEERRS
DAERS
Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) (27)%-28% The higher
located in Hong Kong approach to transaction price the adjusted
URBEBZREME 5L BUA (to reflect location transaction price,
age and maintenance) the higher the
w8 (R X5 EE fair value
(AR 2 - 1B H RIRE) HEEEDS
NRAERS
Investment properties Income capitalization Capitization rate (derived 6.88% The higher the
located in Switzerland approach from monthly market rent) capitalization rate,
MR T2 REME WA B AR E BARELE (BT ATS the lower the
HEITHE) fair value
BRI ERS -
ARERE
Market monthly rent rate SFr10 per The higher
miEEAEe X square metre the monthly
BFHK  market rent rate,
10 the higher the
I BB fair value
BATS
AR EN =T
The fair value of investment properties located in NRFBEREBEZRENEZRAAE
Hong Kong and the PRC is determined using market DERAMBHEEETE  HE2E 0]
comparison approach by reference to recent sales HEEYERETFHFREFFKER
price of comparable properties on a price per square ERENEZRBPERE AERAER
feet or meter basis, adjusted for a premium or discount VIEEE 2T 6 E TR (BT B8
specific to the quality of the Group’s properties ETGHGHBEAE)IEHAE - MWEL
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for EREENERS  BEUERN
higher quality properties will result in a higher fair value BZRARENES -
measurement.
The fair value of investment properties located in MURIHTHIREMEN R AR BEFEBK
Switzerland is determined using income capitalization ANERIEE2BYEmMA A HAEMN
approach by reference to the market rentals of all HWMSHEER  Wl{hr B
lettable units of the properties are assessed by ERMNESRET FIERANERL
reference to the rental achieved in the lettable units. bb R T 22 BR 4K R i B Bl R R 5 1 28 (L
The capitalization rate adopted is made by reference MEZINFER WIREBEGEMEEY
to the yield rate observed by the valuer for the similar BREYEREZNMHSETAE -
properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the
respective properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. B8ME (8)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENARAESE (E)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) FZERIETEEN (B)
(Continued)
There has been no change from the valuation technique Lt FEEERNGE S EB RS E
used in the prior year. T oo
The changes in fair value of investment properties BN 7 B4 EE13,791,0000% T
amounting to HK$13,791,000 (2013: gain of —T— =4 :7,792,000% T ) 2
HK$7,792,000) are recognised in the consolidated FHREABRERNEDR -
statements of profit or loss.
Translation difference is recognised in other EHZmpREm>mkse E N
comprehensive income in “exchange reserve” & | e o

At 31st March 2014, certain investment properties of R-ZT—m&E=F=+—01 ' {8{E137,900,000/%

HK$137,900,000 (2013: HK$151,676,000) were pledged as 7T (ZZT—=4 : 151,676,0005 7T) & TR EY

securities for bank loans as detailed in Note 37. 2 EERITE LR SIS EHRME37 -

The carrying amount of investment properties held by the Group KEBR - E—=FERrR_-_ZET—NE=ZF=+—H

at 31st March 2014 and 2013 comprises: TIAYE YEmESE

The Group
REE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
In Hong Kong, held on: BBz REAE
- Long-term leases 140,600 126,600

Outside Hong Kong, held on: TEB B AN -

— Medium-term leases FHARE 27,473 27,476
- Long-term leases REEE 6,668 6,606
- Freehold KK 10,788 10,301
44,929 44,383

185,529 170,983

(b) The Group’s investment properties outside Hong Kong with b) ZEBMNAEEANIILER@T S S
carrying amount of HK$4,820,000 (2013: HK$4,821,000) are 4,820,000 7L (=& — =4 : 4,821,000%
registered under the name of other persons in trust for the T2 EMETREERNEBEEAZE
Group. ATHTER -

(¢) The fair value of the properties transferred from property, (c) MREEAHMYE HBERREEREME
plant and equipment at the date of transfer had been ZARNERDERS  HEBEERAREBEEE
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that B ARERRNTE Y EER & E
date by Pierre Berset S.A., a firm of independent valuer who B3 E ¥ (L {E1TPierre Berset S.A. KB %
holds a recognized and relevant professional qualification SUWMAZWAE N EN In A TS EE MG
and has recent experience in the location and category of BERTETZEEAER -

properties being valued on an open market basis calculated
by reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

i
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18.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

B §5 ER R B 5F

18. RMBEABIZIES

The Company

N

2014 2013

—E-mF —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost FELTRAD - R 320,837 320,837
Less: impairment loss R R EEE (320,837) (320,837)
Amounts due from subsidiaries NN P 1,204,629 1,194,688
Impairment loss recognised TR (B B 1B (955,870) (924,459)
248,759 270,229

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and not
expected to be recovered within one year. As at 31st March 2014,
except for an amount of approximately HK$20,775,000 (2013:
HK$20,162,000) with interest charged at prevailing prime rate less
2% per annum, the remaining balance were non-interest bearing.
In the opinion of the directors, except for the interest bearing
amount, the amounts due from subsidiaries are considered as
quasi-investments in the subsidiaries and therefore are classified
as non-current assets.

In prior years, due to the poor operating performance of the
relevant subsidiaries, the carrying amount had been impaired
by approximately HK$320,837,000 through the recognition
of impairment losses. After considering the poor operating
performance of the relevant subsidiaries, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that investment cost of these
subsidiaries would not have significant value to the Group and
such amount has already been fully impaired in prior years, and
impairment loss should not be reversed.

Impairment losses amounting to approximately HK$31,411,000
were made during the year ended 31st March 2014 due to the
poor operating performance of certain subsidiaries.

FERKBARGFEAEIERETEABN —F
AKE - RZTB—NE=ZA=+—0 BAHELH
20,775,000 7T (= Z — =4 : 20,162,000/ 7T)
RENREBRNRE2%TER BN - HBRBEA
RE -EEMERRA B BB - EUH
BRARRBHRABEURERHMBAR - FIbi
HEAERHEE -

RBEFE BEEHENBLARAKERARE B
A E R [ 5 #E 208! (B &5 18 £9320,837,000/8 7T -
ZREENBELARKERARE  ARRERER
R ZEMBRRIZREXRAE NG RAEER
REFMEANEE ZFEREARBEFREERER
B R E A -

REBE-_Z-NE=-A=1+-HBILEEEL IR
BB K254 A31,411,00008 7T - HEE TH B
DRIMKEEEERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. RMIBASZIEES (48)

UTRIBRIBEEAKERE  EEXAR

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.

Place of
incorporation or
establishment
or registration/

Paid up
issued ordinary
share capital/

S POETR

Proportion of
issued share capital/
registered capital

Name of subsidiary business registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
AMBAR L EACROEE ARAMBERTRE/
WEAREE T BEx/ERER dMEEzEAL TEER
Directly Indirectly
H# M
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
EBEAHES 10,0007 7 100% - RERR
Juvenia Montres S.A. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 - 100% Assembling and
Kt 1,875,000 3% 5 marketing of gold and
jewellery watches
- 100% ERMEHEERERR
BEAEMN(L8)ES The People’s Republic HK$150,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
BRRA of China*
REARAME" 150,000,000/ T - 100% BHRES
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
BEERM (BE)BERAF B 3,000,000 7T - 100% #EHRES
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100% Brand development and
Limited watch trading
B2 (FR)BRAR 36 5,000,000/ 7T - 100% mEERREERES
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong HK$3,500,100 = 100% Brand development and
(International) Limited watch trading
Ve EHHRE (HR)BRAR BB 3,500,1007% 7T - 100% mEERRERE S
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
RBRAHE/BE EY 100% - NEBERRE
AGEERERKEFRAA The People’s Republic RMB1,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
of China*
REAR AN 1,000,000 A & % - 100% BRES
Wakmann Watch (International) Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 - 50% Brand development and
Company Limited (Note) watch trading
F 8 BIRERRA (M) 0 20,000,000/ 7T - 50% mIEERRERE S
* Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a * REPEAREMBZZAMAEEZEINERE -
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
# Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a # BEPFEAREMBEEZSMAERAGE -
domestic enterprise.
Note: The Group holds 50% of the issued and paid-up capital of Wakmann Wit AEBEFBERREEBEEERAR ([HKe2])50%

BETERHEERRN BE-_ZT——F=A=+—
AzinxhaE A5ERMRREEER2MA
Ko Bt AEEZFBEEENEEEAHNBR

Watch (International) Company Limited (“Wakmann”). Under the
supplementary agreement dated 31st March 2012, the Group
controls the composition of the board of directors of Wakmann.

Therefore, the Group controls Wakmann and classified it as Al e
subsidiary.
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

19. oJHBEZIRE

The Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-gF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Investments in RER
Club debentures, net (Note) EAMES  FRE(ME) 6,577 6,300
Unlisted equity securities in BB LETRAE
Hong Kong B5 950 -
7,527 6,300
Note: et -
The club debentures are measured at fair value. Fair value of the club BEFRRAARBENE  WEMEFZAARBENILERT
debentures has been determined by reference to the bid price quoted in an SEZEBMEE BE-T-—NF=A=+—HLHF
active market. The increase in carrying amount of HK$277,000 for the year E iR E AIREE S @277 000 T (Z T — =4 :
ended 31st March 2014 (2013: HK$244,000) was due to the increase in their 244,000 ) - DR AESEHZ AR BEEM -
fair values.
20. 78
INVENTORIES
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-ImF —ET-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Watches B8
Raw materials B 61,478 71,099
Work in progress F R 735 507
Finished goods UK TR 407,128 497,465
469,341 569,071

At 31st March 2014, certain inventories of HK$147,190,000 (2013:
HK$136,244,000) were pledged as securities for bank loans as

detailed in Note 37.

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in consolidated statement of profit or loss is

RZZE-OF=A=+—H

» 147,190,0005 7T Z

ETHEE (T — =% 136,244,000/ T) O &K #

ERIRITERNER
ERRFAX LI AGREIE

BN FEST
BmRZOMWAT

as follows:
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—EF-mF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFTECZERAEE 735,461 807,478
Write-down of inventories FE MR 21,746 26,089
Reversal of write-down of inventories E & 2 17 & MR & =
due to sales (2,821) (5,033)
754,386 828,534
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ¥ ¥R 2R Bff 5
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. BSRH fib fE U E R
The Group The Company
rEE AATE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —T-=F ZZE-WmFE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables g 5 EWERAK 23,437 28,495 - -
Allowance for doubtful debts REREAE = = = -
23,437 28,495 = _
Other receivables H & AR 3R 6,496 3,990 - -
Loans and receivables BER R ERER R 29,933 32,485 - -
Deposits and prepayments Re kBN FHIE 34,435 60,843 149 282
64,368 93,328 149 282
The Group allows credit period of up to 180 days to its customers. AEEBRTEZHNHAZ1808 22 EH - Nis
The aging analysis of trade receivables of HK$23,437,000 (2013: R RIBERZERAE 2 E S EIKER 23,437,000
HK$28,495,000) at the end of the reporting period based on BT (T — =4 : 28,495,000/ 7T) ZEREC D AT
invoice date is as follows: M
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E—-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade receivables Z 5 E AR
Up to 90 days BNEBZ=90H 17,853 22,583
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,361 3,137
181 to 365 days 181£365H 3,181 2,648
Over 365 days 365H A 1,042 127
23,437 28,495
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables R-E—=FEF " ZEZ—NNE=/A=+—HAKAEH
at 31st March 2014 and 2013 approximate their fair values. CESREMEKERZEREHRANBEHES
All of the trade receivables and other receivables are expected to FEZSEWEZ L EMERZBEEEH TN —F
be recovered within one year. qER
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21.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

Trade receivables that are not impaired

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired, based
on due date, are as follows:

B §5 ER R B 5F

21. SRRHEMEWIRR ()
(a) #HififAz 82 MBERR

RIFZHE - pEEG SRR BB IEREZ
B RYIRFRE DT

The Group
AEHE

2014 2013
—F-NF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Neither past due nor impaired P % 60 B 5B E 18,605 22,583
Less than 90 days past due # #5790 H 1,364 3,137
91 to 180 days past due #HI91=180H 2,061 2,648
Over 180 days past due # HI180H M £ 1,407 127
4,832 5,912
23,437 28,495

Trade receivables are generally due within 90 days from the
date of billings. Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

22. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

—REE SRR A RE B0 NE|
H - HEANRRELESRKEREIER
REWEARRIREHE ZEPA -

BHEERECEREERESZEBILEP
B ZEEPEAKBIZEERLERI -
RigBELR BEERS  LFEHRHA
EHRERE  DHRNEEERUEEAE
B BESRDBEET2ERE - REET
Bt SEBRISAERERR -

22, [EfIPE22ABIRIA

FEATHIR AR FURREER - 2B RIREREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ¥ ¥R 2R Bff 5
23. TRADING SECURITIES 23, BEES
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Listed equity securities at fair value ITHEFZARE - BE

- in Hong Kong 3,676 3,845

EHEHRZAR

BEARRERAREWT ZEAB

The fair value of listed equity securities is based on their closing
bid price at the end of the reporting period.

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. RERNESEN

The Group The Company
rEH KAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-—=F ZZE-HWmFE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITGHERERFERS 40,182 119,032 17,154 65,455
Less: pledged bank deposits R EEFRITIER
(Note 37) (H17#37) (3,303) (2,272)
Cash and cash equivalents in RirE M Bk & &
the consolidated statement of REBRERERIT
financial position and the WiRE KRS EEY
consolidated statement
of cash flows 36,879 116,760
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and RZE—NWF=ZA=+—HAFREEEFER
in hand of HK$17,083,000 (equivalent to RMB13,680,000) held in 2 fﬁ ChRECEEMRERTEAFERS

the PRC as at 31st March 2014 (2013: HK$42,482,000 (equivalent
to RMB34,016,000)). The conversion of RMB denominated
balance into foreign currencies and the remittance of such
foreign-currency denominated bank balances and cash out of the
PRC are subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

During the year, cash at banks carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.001% to 0.35% (2013: 0.001% to 0.44%) per annum.
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Bf 5T
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B RH fih & {< 8 =k
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-OF =% ZE-NOFfF "—T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEr FET FET
Trade payables Z 5 ERR 37,841 45,702 - -
Other payables and accrued HEMEMRRREER
charges 49,160 49,933 2,830 3,429
Financial liabilities measured N#EERATE 2 SRAE
at amortised cost 87,001 95,635 2,830 3,429
Rental received in advance B S 75 75 - -
Deposits received Bz 5,245 3,496 - -
Other tax payable EfhEMAEIE 114,056 108,670 - -
206,377 207,876 2,830 3,429

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables at

31st March 2014 and 2013 approximate their fair values.

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on

demand.

The carrying amounts of the trade payables of the Group are

mainly denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on date of receipt

R-E-—=FR-FT-NMF=ZA=+—-BAKH
B MNEMENERZERERE QXA ERE -

FEE S REMBMNERET N —FREE LR
RBRABA - RIREREE -
AEEERNESERZERAEIZAARE LA
TTHIE -

RIBEHR  BEAINERZBEHZENE SR

of goods as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: FERSTWOT -
The Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade payables Z 5 TR
Up to 90 days BN EBZ=90H 29,535 43,003
91 to 180 days 91%180H 2,328 137
181 to 365 days 181£2365H 1,697 860
Over 365 days 365H A £ 4,281 1,702
37,841 45,702
Representing ESN
Trade payables B I REMNER
— Third parties —%=h 36,235 45,686
- Related companies —FER A 1,606 16
37,841 45,702

Annual Report 2014 |97



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

26. BANK LOANS 26. WRiTES
The Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans WITIEE
- secured — B 74,260 136,398
- unsecured — IR 61,189 87,366
135,449 223,764
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans are as follows: WOTERZEESESFTWOT -
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=%F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FHET
Current liabilities mEBE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —FREEERZ M
within one year IRITER 29,970 93,668
Portion of bank loans due for repayment within ~ —FREIHEEILDRITZER
one year which contains a repayment on H A8 #5122 SO IR
demand clause 68,379 55,836
Portion of bank loans due for repayment *ifﬁ B HAE R 2 B 15 R1T
after one year which contains a repayment ? HEJEEREX
on demand clause (note i) B RAEK (AT ati) 37,100 74,260
135,449 223,764
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. BANK LOANS (Continued)

At 31st March 2014, the bank loans were due for repayment as
follows:

26.

B §5 ER R B 5F

3R
RoT-ME=A=+—8 HMEEZRTH
#

The Group
rEER
2014 2013
—E-NOF T =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Portion of bank loans due for repayment —FRIBEREZ
within one year RITE R 98,349 149,504
Bank loans due for repayment —FRIBEECRITER
after one year (note ii): (Bt azii) -
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEEMFRN 37,100 37,160
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFRA - 37,100
37,100 74,260
135,449 223,764

Note:

i) None of the portion of bank loans due for repayment after one year
which contain a repayment on demand clause and that is classified as
a current liability is expected to be settled within one year.

ii) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as
stipulated in the respective loan agreements.

As disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements, the Group
failed to fulfill certain financial covenants under a term loan
agreement, namely, the current ratio and tangible net worth of
Asia Commercial Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries. Such
breach entitles the bank to declare the outstanding principal
amount, accrued interest and all other sums payable under the
bank loan to become immediately due and payable. As such, the
whole amount of the outstanding bank loan of HK$74,260,000 was
classified as bank loans due for repayment within one year.

The bank loans are carried at amortised cost.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contractual
interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans are ranged from 2.90%
t0 6.60% (2013: 2.90% to 7.21%) per annum.

As at 31st March 2014, the secured bank loans were secured
by (i) pledged of assets as disclosed in note 37, (ii) corporate
guarantees given by the Company (iii) assignment of dividends
payable by BLHFRM (L&) EH5ER AR and shareholder’s
loans of WHEKXM (L&) BHHERAF advanced or to be
advanced by Time City (Hong Kong) Limited and (iv) assignment of
rental income from certain investment properties.

As at 31st March 2013, the unsecured bank loans of
HK$18,676,000 is guaranteed by the bank deposit of
HK$3,900,000 owned by a director, Mr. Eav Yin and corporate
guarantees from the Company and certain subsidiaries.

Wizt -

i) —FRIMERRTERUELOEREBERB R
BHRERRBOBRBEFAR -—FRAEEZRDE

& o

i) ZRERBMBIERGHAREIAEERAS -

NEF RS TR M sl - REBRALIERZEFIB
THETHBERG  IEEHESEBBERARK
HMBRARNRSESHENEREEFE - %
BERBTRITEMBEBZAEELAS - E5HF
BRZERA T H E i FE & 5% 5k B 5 8
MAFAER - Al - IEREERTERSEE
74,260,000 7L 5 BZER —F RNEENRTT

o 2,
HA°

RITEFIRBH AT R -

REBZETEREBEMNE (HEREHFX)
FEN TN EB2.90%%56.60% (—F— =4
2.90%%E7.21%) T % o

RZZE—WF=A=+—H BEMRITERD
M7 EN EERR (B AR ARME
ZREER - (NEBEEERR(LE) ESERQA
SRS ERBEEERN (BE)GRAA
LREBNSEENEERRU (L) BSERA
AzBRRERR(VAETRENEASKAND
[

R-ZZE—ZFZA=Z+—8 #&F 2R
B 5/18,676,0008 THEE G L EMBEEN
3,900,000 iR 1TF SRKIEBEA IR - ARARF
FEEZETHBRARZ A RERBEER-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Bf 5
27. LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR 27. BETEH
The Group
AEHE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ZE—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REH) 14,000 65,000
Addition during the year FRIE M 62,000 21,000
Repayment made during the year FRELHES (24,000) (72,000)
At end of the year REKE 52,000 14,000
The loans are unsecured, bearing interest at the Hong Kong dollar ZEZWEKE  LESLEEERT(DELR
prime rate as quoted by the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking TDREZBTHEBFEMFERA%T ERRE
Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) plus 1% per annum and repayable KIEE -
on demand.
28. PROVISION FOR STORE CLOSURE 28. [EaSERE
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F-mE —E=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
At beginning of the year REH] 12,224 -
Provisions made during the year FAEL B E 6,599 12,178
Store closure expenses paid ERRIEHEEZRAX (11,200) -
Exchange difference EHZER 11 46
At end of the year REFE 7,634 12,224
The provision for store closure was made in connection with the MNABERTANTZEEHEEEXNTFETR
close of various retail stores including the compensation to be BEHESHZEEMEEN R G ERE -
paid to landlords and onerous lease contracts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B §5 ER R B 5F

29. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 20. EiETRIBEE
(a) Deferred tax liabilities recognised (a) PRAZEEZEMRBEGE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the BEREARMBARARPEERELHIES
statement of financial position and the movements during the BZHEKBHRESLBINT :
reporting period are as follows:
The Group The Company
31 b
Equity Equity
Revaluation component component
of investment  of convertible of convertible
properties notes Total notes
Eff TRREE TEREE
RENF Enia ag Enia
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Deferred tax arising from: BRERREERE :
At 1st April 2012 R-Z-——#mA—-AH 7,045 1,005 8,050 1,005
Credited to consolidated income FAGERER
statement (309) - (309) -
At 31st March 2013 RZE-—=%=f=t+—-H 6,736 1,005 7,741 1,005
At 1st April 2013 R-_F-=FNA—A 6,736 1,005 7,741 1,005
Credited to equity AR - (1,005) (1,005) (1,005)
At 31st March 2014 R_E-EHE=A=+-H 6,736 - 6,736 -
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) RERZIEERBEE
The Group has allowable tax losses arising in Hong Kong NEBBEBELA I EERHIBEEELY
of approximately HK$500,738,000 (2013: HK$452,594,000) /500,738,000 70 TER— N AHEE
which are mainly arisen prior to the capital restructuring in AREMARES (ZZT— =4 : 452,594,000
1997, that are available for offsetting against future taxable Bor) AN EEEEEN AR RKRE
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred REER o AN ARIEF T BE/EHTER - B
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these TERNEFEEERELEHIBEE - RIER
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. TR FE = - %}%Iﬁ)’éﬂé TeEmEl o g B
The tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation. EREHRMES  HEKLLSEBELGNTE
Tax losses of approximately HK$66,884,000 (2013: mi%}%}é!%’]66,884,000/%7t (ZE—=%:
HK$33,622,000) attributable to the continuing operations in 33,622,000/ 7T) © B] A EE 85 Ak 2K % I -
the PRC are available for offsetting against future profits that WAEE R EF o
may be carried forward for five years for the PRC Corporate
Income Tax purpose.
AT EAE AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

29.

30.

31.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

(c) Withholdings tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which took
effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from the PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22nd February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31st
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations are exempted from the withholding
tax. At 31st March 2014, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to HK$28,013,000 (2013: HK$91,417,000). Deferred tax
liabilities in respect of these temporary differences have not
been recognised, as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC and it has
been determined that it is probable that the profits earned by
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC for the period from 1st
January 2008 to 31st March 2014 will not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

OTHER LIABILITIES

The amounts represented the non-current portion of accrued
rental expenses.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 31st August 2010, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent, pursuant to which the placing
agent conditionally agreed, to procure placees to subscribe
for convertible notes issued by the Company in an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$100,800,000 on a “best-efforts”
basis.

On 27th September 2010, the Company completed the placing
of HK$100,800,000 convertible notes to independent placees,
with the price of HK$98,784,000, after deducting transaction cost
of 2% over the principal amount of the convertible notes. The
convertible notes carry interest at 3% per annum and the principal
amounts of all convertible notes shall be due and repayable on the
third anniversary of the date of issue.
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31.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The convertible notes entitle their holders to convert their
outstanding principal amounts into new conversion shares at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.84 per conversion share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustment). Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the convertible notes, the conversion price of the
convertible notes was adjusted from HK$0.84 per conversion
share to HK$0.168 per subdivided share as a result of the share
subdivision. The above adjustment took effect from the close of
business of Monday, 15th November 2010.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible notes,
the conversion price of the convertible notes was adjusted from
HK$0.168 per conversion share to HK$1.68 per consolidated
share as a result of the share consolidation (refer to Note 32(a) for
details). The above adjustment took effect from 8th January 2013.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the convertible notes,
the conversion price of the convertible notes was adjusted from
HK$1.68 per conversion share to HK$0.573 per share as a result
of the rights issue (refer to Note 32(c) for details).

The movement of the liability component of the convertible notes
is set out as below:

B §5 ER R B 5F

31. olifRRIE (48)

HEEERTESEAANMGERE (B8
BED0.848TT) BIRERITRZASSEENA
Bpn (BFRESHEME) - REATHRERERE
B2 G RG> AR IR - BEATMERER
B BBREHREAERKLN0.84BTHBEER
AR190.1688TT Ll FHEBEH —T—FTF+—H
THEEH -RXZBERMIBEN

WIRAT BRI 2 GRRRIGEHE - TRREENR
BRERRO SO B —EHRR(7H0.168/E LA
EHEHRMH1.688 L (2R HE32(a) » Ll
BR-ZE—=—F—A\BRER - RETHERKRE
B2 IR RAGH TR E R AR EEHAR
mE—EREM7H1.68E LA ZEER7D0.5738 T
(FF152 R M5E32(c)) °

HMEREREEENRD 2 EBENNT

The Group and
the Company

AEBEREAT

HK$’000

FET

At 1st April 2012 R-ZZE——FmWA—H 29,872
Interest expenses F B 5 X2 3,304
Payment of interest expenses AR ERZ (939)
At 31st March 2013 R-ZZT—=F=ZA=+—H 32,237
At 1st April 2013 R-ZZE—=FWA—H 32,237
Interest expenses FERX 1,684
Payment of interest expenses S A B (692)
Redemption fE ol (33,229)

At 31st March 2014

Interest expense on the convertible notes was calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective rate of
11.92% per annum on the liability component of the convertible
notes.

RZE—NF=A=+—H _

BEREN S FARRMEOEAE - RAT

AJ
BRBEEELD 2B BFE11.92% 2 FFE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. 1Bk
The Group and the Company
EEERALQT
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.02 each HK$0.2 each Amount
BREE EREE
0.02% T 2 0.2 T2
TEREB ZEREE &8
Notes 000 000 HK$’000
(i3 TR Fig FET
Authorised: EERA
At 1st April 2012 RZT——FMH—H 5,000,000 - 100,000
Share consolidation & 10 & o (a) (5,000,000) 500,000 -
Increase in authorised VA E R AR
share capital (b) - 2,000,000 400,000
At 31st March 2013, RZE—Z==ZA=+—8"
1st April 2013, and —E-=FUA—HK
31st March 2014 —ET-ME=A=+—H - 2,500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRER:
At 1st April 2012 R-ZE——FmMA—H 3,417,166 - 68,343
Share consolidation &1 & Bt (a) (3,417,166) 341,716 -
Issue of shares HRIBRBRERE 2
under rights issue 2E&TIRM (c) - 1,025,150 205,030
At 31st March 2013, RZE—=F=-A=+—8"
1st April 2013 and —E-=FWA—AK
31st March 2014 —E—NFE=A=+—H - 1,366,866 273,373
Notes: B

(@

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 7th January 2013, the consolidation of ordinary shares in
the share capital of the Company (on the basis that every 10 then
existing issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each were
consolidated into one ordinary share of HK$0.2 each) was approved
and became effective on 8th January 2013.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 7th January 2013, the Company’s
authorised ordinary share capital was increased to HK$500,000,000
by the creation of an additional 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.2 each (immediately after the share consolidation as mentioned
in note (a) above) ranking pari passu with the existing ordinary shares
of the company in all respects.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held on 7th
January 2013, the rights issue at the price of HK$0.2 per rights share
on the basis of three rights shares for every one ordinary share of
HK$0.2 each (immediately after the share consolidation and increase
in authorised share capital as mentioned in note (a) and note (b)
above) respectively, was approved. The rights issue was completed in
February 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

(a)

B §5 ER R B 5F

33. IRigmfEEH

effects of share
consolidation and

2 years from the date
of grant (20%)

rights issue) BROAHERF (20%)
(ARG E B R 3 years from the date
Ry 8% HE of grant (20%)
78,139,075 MR A= (20%)
BRE) 4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B B RmE (20%)

5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B AR F (20%)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (a) WBARIESHE
On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company RZEBEZ-_FALAZ+H  AARIMKREHE
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the R EREFS (ST FERE
“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 Z) o  —ET-FHEREIEC BNIEE
Share Option Scheme is to encourage qualifying grantees to EBRAEBRARNABERNGT R EG RS Y
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its MBERARRARERGOZ2EE —TZT =
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders FHERETENEGERERABOAAT R
as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option AT B B A Bl s T Bt B A R Rl E B
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related SEMEERARZER RIEA - KRS
consultant, agent, representative or advisor of the Company BB sk (ii) A A &) AT {A] Y /B X &) s AT ]
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or BB N R E SRS 2 T E - 1
consultant who provide goods or services to the Company b A S A (1) PN A= R EIN AN Y
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iii) any customer of EABB R R 2 EREP ¢ 8(v)A QR ST
the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any BN ENG B EERE NG S - -Y
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any BERY-
affiliate.

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: () BHEZEREEEDT

Period during

Category of  No. of share which share

eligible options options are Exercise Contractual

persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of

RERAL BitiH Date of grant conditions AT share options

2B BREZA REAH BERE BRENSER SRITHEE BREZSHH

Directors 27,750,000 31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$0.394 10 years

) (equivalent to —E-—f of grant (20%) 30th March 2021 0.3948 7T T4

8,139,075 share ZA=+-8 HRLASHE—F(20%) ZZ--F=A=THZE (HK$.344
options after the “ZE--F=F=1H after the adjustments

of share consolidation

and rights issue)
(RIRA & BF RAE IR

AR%B1.3445ETT)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

33. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(a) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

33. WrigtnfE1Eml (&)

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:

(Continued)

(a) IEARIESH SN (68)

iy WHZERREEAT @ (&)

Period during
Category of  No. of share which share
eligible options options are Exercise Contractual
persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of
RERAL REH Date of grant conditions qTE share options
2AE BREHA Rt A BERHS BRENER SRITEE BREZGNE
Employees 119,050,000 31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$0.394 10 years
BT (equivalent to —E-—f at grant (20%) 30th March 2021 0.39475 7T T4
34,917,365 =ZA=+-H mEHASRE—F(20%) —T--F=A=+H (HK$1.344
share options “ZZ-F=H=1H afterthe adjustments
after the effects of 2 years from the date of share consolidation
share consolidation of grant (20%) and rights issue)
and rights issue) BT A HRRE (20%) (R RR1 &4 R A AR
(RBRHE G R 3 years from the date LR B1.3445BT)
HERF2HE  HE of grant (20%)
134,917,365 ML AR =2 (20%)
BRE) 4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B B EREmE (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B ERHERE (20%)
Director 34,170,000 26th October 2011 1 year from the date 25th October 2012 to  HK$0.263 10 years
S (equivalent to —E——f at grant (20%) 25th October 2021 0.2637% T T
10,022,061 +RA=+x8 AEHASE—F(20%) —T-—FF+A-+HA (HK$0.897
share options E-F--F after the adjustments
after the effects of 2 years from the date +A=-t+%H of share consolidation
share consolidation of grant (20%) and rights issue)
and rights issue) MR T B ESEME (20%) (RRIDEHRER
(R E 6 & 3 years from the date A% A0.8975 )
HRF 2% AE of grant (20%)
710,022,061 mEHABE=F(20%)
BERE) 4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
BT A HERE (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
mf AR RE (20%)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(a) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(i)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows:

B §5 ER R B 5F

33. WrigEtn{EEml (4)

(a)

KBz iEst 8 (58

(i) EBAEZBERINEFHTEENT

2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
hnE g BRE In#E 715 f R
TREE gE B HE

HK$ HK$

E T BT

Outstanding at the E Y AT

beginning of the year 1.284 42,871,661 0.365 153,220,000

Forfeited during the year/period A/ HiA 5k &%

- 0.394 (4,500,000

Outstanding immediately ZFERR D & OF

before the share consolidation A Z i RK7T{E 1.284 42,871,661 0.364 148,720,000
Effect of share consolidation RO &HZFE - - (133,848,000)
Forfeited during the period INHAR R - - 3.940 (105,000)
Outstanding immediately ZBE AR AT

before the rights issue ZMARITEE 1.284 42,871,661 3.637 14,767,000
Effect of rights issue G -4 - - 28,544,611
Forfeited during the year/period & A, 5k 3 1.344  (8,799,000) 1.344 (439,950)
Outstanding at the F R M ARITEE

end of the year 1.212 34,072,661 1.239 42,871,661
Exercisable at the RERAITE

end of the year 1.246 18,439,184 1.284 15,144,252

The options outstanding at 31st March 2014 had
exercise prices of HK$1.344 or HK$0.897 (2013:
HK$1.344 or HK$0.897) and a weighted average
remaining contractual lives of 7.17 years (2013: 8.11
years).

R-ZZTE—NF=ZA=+—H8 " HKT
{5 B A% 4 2 17 {F 81.34475 7T 510.897
BIL(ZZT— =4 : 1.344% 7500.897
BIT) RN E HFETATE
(ZF—=F:811F) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

33. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

(b)

Share Award Plan 2010

On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share
Award Plan 20107).

The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share
award and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging
or facilitating the holding of shares by those selected
employees of the Group who, as determined by the Board,
are eligible to participate in the plan and to whom new
shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use of
the plan to award new shares to those selected employees
of the Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2013 and as at 31st
March 2014 and 2013, there was no outstanding award
granted under the Share Award Plan 2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B §5 ER R B 5F

34. RESERVES 34. i
The Group K&
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AREBBESERI D 2 EHFEIBRERZEH
of each component of the Group’s reserves is set out in the HESREGAESEHRP - RAQF ZRHES
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the ERHDFEIRFRZENSCFBERINOT -
changes in the Company’s individual components of reserves
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below.
The Company WA
(Accumulated
Share Convertible losses)/
Share option notes equity Contributed retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
AEREE (REHEB)/
ROGE BRERE RA R MABH RERF “am
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FET FET FET
At 1st April 2012 NZE——FMA—H 137,828 12,682 5,085 17,524 59,720 232,839
Loss for the year AFEEE - - - - (224,949) (224,949)
Other comprehensive income £ {2 4z 25 - - - - - -
Total comprehensive AEXEERLESE
loss for the year - - - - (224,949) (224,949)
Transaction with owners REBREBEAZRS
Share issue expenses BRHEITER
in respect of rights issue (4,218) - - - - (4,218)
Recognition of equity- BRIEE = EE UKD
settled share based AERINNAR
payment expenses - 8,850 - - - 8,850
Transfer to accumulated REEIRIE XM
losses upon forfeiture BAZGEE
of share options - (294) - - 294 -
At 31st March 2013 RZE—=F
=A=1+—H 133,610 21,238 5,085 17,524 (164,935) 12,522
At 1st April 2013 RZZE—=FNAF—H 133,610 21,238 5,085 17,524 (164,935) 12,522
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (40,012) (40,012)
Other comprehensive income {2 i Yz 25 - - - - - -
Total comprehensive AERXAEELSR
loss for the year - - - - (40,012) (40,012
Transaction with owners HBEBALRS
Deferred tax credit RERASRREEEZ
upon redemption of BELHIEES
convertible notes - - 1,005 - - 1,005
Recognition of equity- RIEREE AR,
settled share based AERTANAR
payment expenses - 2,952 - - - 2,952
Transfer to accumulated iNAERE T ES
losses upon redemption BAZEE
of convertible notes - - (6,090) - 6,090 -
Transfer to accumulated PRBE R KR
losses upon forfeiture BAZHER
of share options - (2,613) - - 2,613 -
At 31st March 2014 RZT—lE
=A=+—H 133,610 21,577 - 17,524 (196,244) (23,533)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

34. RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(@

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”).

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with the
revaluation on properties reclassified to investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings in Note 3(g).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 3(t).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring which will be
used for the purpose of repurchase of issued and fully paid ordinary
share capital.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction
effective on 28th March 2007. The balance of contributed surplus
account may be utilised in the future in accordance with the
Bye-Laws and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements on making distributions in the Companies Act.

Share option reserve
The share option reserve relates to share options granted to

employees under the Company’s employee share option plan. Further
information about share option is set out in Note 33.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. RESERVES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(9@

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents accumulated gains and losses
arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale investments that have
been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of amounts
reclassified to profit or loss when those investments are disposed of
or are determined to be impaired.

Convertible notes equity reserve

The convertible notes equity reserve represents the equity component
(conversion rights) of the convertible notes issued during the year
ended 31st March 2011 (Note 31).

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies Act, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

At 31st March 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$Nil (2013: HK$Nil)
subject to the restriction on the share premium account as stated
above. The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk primarily arises from cash at banks and,
trade and other receivables. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at banks and bank deposits are placed with
licensed financial institutions with high credit ratings.
The Group monitors the exposure to each single
financial institution.

For trade and other receivables, credit checks are
part of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amounts of trade and other receivables at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i

(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
and other receivables are set out in Note 21.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company as set out in note 41, the Group and the
Company do not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 41.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

i ¥ bR E IR (4])

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BMIFERMEBEEE (E)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wEEREE ()
The following table details the remaining contractual TERAXEERAQNRFLEHEE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the RBEBRZHTALYEESHA (BIEE
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, MEBMKRUSHTNERSE 2 F 2 00%
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash g - ‘Ef\iﬁiﬁﬂﬂEZﬂiufﬁﬂiTﬁfﬁfﬁ
flows (including interest payments computed using ERE) &$’§lﬁi$ AemE
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current ftz&xFBH:E :
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
Specifically, for bank loans which contain a repayment TER  REEFIRRTEENS ﬁ@i
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s Z?QEQi Eig \%,?kzmﬁﬁféf#\ ’
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow AMBARERE B ERKMAR (ED
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be MEARES fB@EwZ?ﬁi 16 14 4 ) BD B (B
required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were to invoke their BER) 2=FHBZRESRL - i
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate RITEEZIHBA M HRIEBEETEE
effect. The maturity analysis for other bank borrowings HEHRER -
is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.
The Group KEE
2014
—E-NFE
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than or on
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount ERERITR SR—F48 R—FR
REE RERELE DRME FRER
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables B 5 K HE b FE TR 87,001 87,001 - 87,001
Bank loans RITEE 135,449 135,769 - 135,769
Loans from a director EEZER 52,000 52,000 z 52,000
274,450 274,770 - 274,770
2013
—T-=F
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than or on
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount BHRFTR SZR—FE R—FR
REE HRensRs LPRME IR E K
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables H 5 REMER KX 95,635 95,635 - 95,635
Bank loans RITEE 223,764 224,871 - 224,871
Convertible notes B eSS 32,237 32,709 - 32,709
Loans from a director EEER 14,000 14,000 - 14,000
365,636 367,215 - 367,215
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Bf 5T
35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 35. IREREIR (8)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE ()
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wEEREE ()
The Company PN
2014
—E—MNE
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than or on
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand

amount BHRATE ZR—F48 R—FR
REE RERBAE DPRME HRER

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Other payables Hi A ERR 2,830 2,830 - 2,830
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JE{THI B QA5 IE 13,392 13,392 - 13,392
16,222 16,222 - 16,222

Financial guarantee issued: B ER AT
Maximum amount guaranteed &S EFREE - 74,260 - 74,260

2013
—E-=F

Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
undiscounted less than oron
Carrying cash flows 2 years demand
amount BHRITH ZR—FR R—FRN
FEHE RenR=ELE% NTTES iR Ek
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Other payables H e FBR3X 3,429 3,429 - 3,429
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JE{I B R EFIE 13,400 13,400 - 13,400
Convertible notes TBRRER 32,237 32,709 - 32,709
49,066 49,538 - 49,538

Financial guarantee issued: B ER AT
Maximum amount guaranteed &S ERFREE - 130,096 - 130,096
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 35. EERBRSIP ()
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HHERERBRE(E)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) wEEREE ()

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis TERBAELEENER HBZEEKRE
of bank loans with a repayment on demand clause KERBKRZEHEE TﬁlﬁEZ%ﬁng
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in REBED - ZeBEREFAA
the loan agreements. The amounts include interest ﬂ"‘ KA EZFERMK - ZEE 'Jéﬁifﬁﬁ
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking HATBRBEERNEBRE - AR
into account of the negotiation with bank for the waiver EERA/BITTIKRAREITEENE T’EE
for the breach of financial covenants, the directors ERAIFERE - AAREZESEHEE %5
of the Company do not consider it probable that the BRITERKBRBEERBZEAE BT
bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate ERBHEE -

repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan

agreements.
Maturity Analysis - Term Loans subject to a Ao - BREEEEEBEEARERE
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled M2 EHMER
repayments
The Group RKE
Carrying
More than More than Total amount at
1 year but 2 years but undiscounted 31st March
less than less than cash 2014
Within 2 years 5 years outflows RZE-NE
1 year ZR—F SRME AHXHFRE =ZA=t+-H
R—ER BORME BOREE BERELE REE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
31st March 2014 RZE-—NE=A=+—H 69,613 37,933 - 107,546 105,479
31st March 2013 R-ZE—=%=fF=+—H 115,522 38,394 38,229 192,145 186,297
(i) Foreign currency risk (ii)) S EJE f2

Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

>U11Lr

EXREREEeRMIAEEMBMEZE
ZWEeEE AN B FIE

i)
file

The Group’s exposure to currency risk is insignificant. AEBEZEBRRMTRE
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=
e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 35. REBRSIP (8)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE (&)
(iv) Interest rate risk (iv) F&Ef
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in AEEEHBBEHRTER (M
relation to variable-rate short term bank loan (Note 26) 26) FMEREH 2 RBESRR KA —H
and loans from a director (Note 27). EFER(MF27) 2K -
The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk N B 7 IR AR TR A R B DA T
to ensure there are no more exposures to significant RIZBEEKNF R LB = A E K F
interest rate movements and rates are relatively fixed. RFHBT o AN EE I E (T E T F
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial ZeRMABEANEFAER  REE
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the EYEEATESR T AEY hEER -

Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its debt obligations.

(i) Interest rate profile iy FIEHR
The following table details the interest rate profile TERFMRANEE 2 BERERE
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the HAR Z B MAEBR

reporting period:

The Group rEE
2014 2013
—E-Dmf —T-=F
Effective Effective
interest rates interest rates
BERA= BB =
% HK$°000 % HK$’000
FET FHET
Fixed rate borrowings: EIEF=EK
Convertible notes Qe e - - 11.92 32,237
Bank loans RITEE - - 6.16-6.3 56,201
- 88,438
Variable rate borrowings: MEBARER
Bank loans RITEE 3.58-6.6 135,449 2.91-6.16 167,563
Loans from a director EEZEHR Hong Kong dollar 52,000 Hong Kong dollar 14,000
prime rate quoted prime rate quoted
by HSBC plus by HSBC plus
1% per annum 1% per annum
EERTER ELRITET
BEEANE REEANE
MEFE1% MEFE1%
187,449 181,563
Total borrowings BER 187,449 270,001
Net fixed rate borrowings FEITE &R &
as a percentage of total EBBER
borrowings 2B - 32.8%
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R §5 ER R B 5F

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

Convertible notes and fixed-rate bank loans of
the Group which are fixed rate instruments are
insensitive to any change in interest rates. A
change in interest rate at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.

At 31st March 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% in interest rate, with all
other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s loss before taxation for the
year and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$1,874,000. Other components of consolidated
equity would not change in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

At 31st March 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 1% in interest rate with all
other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s loss before taxation for the
year and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$1,816,000. Other components of consolidated
equity would not change in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the beginning of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest bearing financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 1% increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2013
has been prepared on the same basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ﬂ

(b) Capital management (b) ERREREIR
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to REFBEBEAZBEEABRERRNZER
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue BRI LA ESERE  FRELEBRIRA
as a going concern while maximising the return to owners RERZREESHKTEEAZLR - FBEE
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The BeKALEGERAEE R BIEE
management reviews the capital structure by considering HHERNGEE BERNNL  ANEBBUER
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each AEEREE BN BOYTKEE - BT
class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its MR ERBETHEESXBELRARAEE - LFEE
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, HRR B R R A o
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and appropriate.
The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net REBUEEHR(EATFABERIABIKRAN
debt divided by the total equity. Net debt is calculated as BRI ESER B FESE AT
bank loans, loans from a director and convertible notes less B BEEEFEUBEBRERREERET
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents as FR o NBESEBSZEMNESGAR
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. RFIIR - BREXDIEFAEERES D - KEHE
Total equity comprises all components of equity. The Group EEREBE—AEENEERBLRAKFE -
aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The MRAREMREELRNT -
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period were as
follows:
2014 2013
—EB-mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Bank loans (Note 26) wITEE (M it26) 135,449 223,764
Loans from a director (Note 27) EE2ER (K at27) 52,000 14,000
Convertible notes (Note 31) AIRIRER (H17#31) - 32,237
187,449 270,001
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) 15 : & MIR& SEY (H/iF24) (36,879) (116,760)
Pledged bank deposits (Note 24) BERRITFR (A 224) (3,303) (2,272)
Net debt B FER 147,267 150,969
Total equity MR 406,480 547,027
Gearing ratio BEL = 36.2% 27.6%
(c) Equity price risk (c) BREEIEER
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading REEBATKE FTBFBEREMEEZR
of listed securities classified as trading securities in the ZEREB(NEETBMRARTHDIEAS
consolidated statement of financial position. The sensitivity BEEE) o HRMSTIIBIEAAEZE
analysis has been determined based on the exposure to ZERRARMAT °
equity price risk.
At 31st March 2014, if the quoted market prices of the 75/\*“—EEF:H:+—EI HWEE &S
trading securities had been 20% higher or lower while all iﬁ{ EAHTB20% M H Al & E 4
other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss before CREBEBRBRAIEREBERIEEZA
taxation would decrease or increase by approximately ﬁ{ﬁ@é}jﬁﬁﬁ}\ﬁiibu%’ﬂ735,000§%ﬁ(:§
HK$735,000 (2013: HK$769,000) as a result of changes in — =14 : 769,000/ L) °
fair value of investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 35. BREARSIE (8)

(d) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of (d) ERNRUFER[ZDPZARIAHSE
financial position
Fair value hierarchy DB
TEREVINAEBEMTEZAAE  ZET
BERRERAREZEEUHREESSE U2 EAR
BEMBEREENE135 - AnBEFEFR
EZ—EEHRAREERE - BALEFE
DEZEBRTIZEATREREFMARAZ
BBt REZHMET

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

F-AEE:REAREEXLEER
R G 2 RIE T ERE -

o Level 1 valuations: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) .
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

F_AMEE:REYAAEFERE
AFEBZmERA BB AERIEE
WBRZMETE -

o Level 2 valuations: based on valuation techniques for .
which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either directly or

indirectly.

e  Level 3 valuations: based on valuation techniques for e FEoRMHE: REHAABNESE
which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair R 27 mEEaASETATER G
value measurement is unobservable. BA% -

The Group 2014 2013

A5E “E-mE —T-=f

Quoted prices  Significant  Significant Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REBTE EXTER EXFUBE REBMS EXTEE EATTEER
ZHE GARE WARE B BALE N6
(E-8) (E=8) (B=8) “am (E—1) (BZH) (8=8H) aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEx FEx FET FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale EREs
investments RE - 6,577 - 6,577 - 6,300 - 6,300
Trading securities HHEE 3,676 - - 3,676 3,845 - - 3,845
Total o 3,676 6,577 - 10,253 3,845 6,300 - 10,145
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

o ¥ IR E IR (4])

(d) Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of (d) HERREFKRABZDZARENE (B)
financial position (Continued)
During the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2013, there REE2 T =—FE-_ZT-—NF=ZfA=+—
were no transfers between in Level 1 and Level 2, or HItFEHE WEE—RLRFE_H2ED
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to B R EARERE =R NEEZBUR
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as BRZREPRBELESEE  #RANAAEER
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur. ZERER% -
The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s REBRAATZE/ T A ZEEETIIRK
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost such R HE AR AAR MRS MBS ZEY
as cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, B RAMBEKER  B5REMEMNEKER
trade and other payables and bank and other borrowings are RBRTREMEE  EARERZT—=F
not materially different from their fair values as at 31st March FZZE—NE=RA=+—HUEERTH"
2014 and 2013 because of the immediate or short term WHRZEm T AR GHAEIE - LT
maturity of these financial instruments except as follows: 1B SLBR AN
The Group and the Company
Financial liabilities cRas AEERAKDT
Carrying amount Fair value
RESE AffE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE =—T—=F ZEBE-NFE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Convertible notes AR 8 - 32,237 - 30,848
(e) Estimation of fair values (e) AREMIGEH
The following summarises the major methods and AT AR eI AARBZEE
assumptions used in estimating the fair values financial EFBRER -
instruments.
i) Trading securities ) EFEE
Fair value is based on closing bid price quoted in an ANABENEEIRMEZKRTE AB
active market at the end of the reporting period without RBEBHRTINMBREMZ SRR 2T
any deduction for transaction costs. BEE o
i) Available-for-sale investments i) ARHEZRE
Fair value is determined by reference to the bid price NAETILELEFERM S TR EM
quoted in an active market without any deduction for RHRANE ABREMIET -
transaction costs.
iii)  Convertible notes iii)  ARRER
The fair value is estimated as the present value of the /\ﬁﬁ)ﬂﬁg\,ﬁ’j S EZARKRE S RE
contractually determined stream of future cash flows RIAAELU SR T AMMIZR =T
discounted at the current market interest rates for Eﬁﬁﬁ1ﬁ§+ °
similar financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. EABHREALTRS
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its FRAEBEABEATHEUTZRS

related parties:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FESBASHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of Group, AEBEFTEBEEAEHMN  BEINFAR
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and RIEEMAE THREFAL (WM F10FTHE)
certain of highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 10, is ZEREWT
as follows:
2014 2013
—F-mF =F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short-term employee benefits REEERER 15,683 17,143
Post-employment benefits RIK1ERE T 61 58
Share-based payment expenses LARR D B B i 2 153K 2,419 3,957
18,163 21,158
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note e @zse st A8 TRA | (RETEE((b)) °
9(b)).
(b) Financing arrangements (b) BIFETHE
2014 2013
—E—-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Loans from a director EEZER 52,000 14,000
Accrued interest (Note) ZFHAE (i) 2,431 -
54,431 14,000
Details of the new loans and loans repaid during the year are FREEERLRFTERFEBERNGAMBRE
disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. M sE27Hh 55 o
Note: The amount is included in “trade and other payables” to the Mat  ZRERREGEAMBMRIARNIES R EhE
consolidated statement of financial position. RHBEFR]

i

e

i

i

EEEHARAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERR B EE

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. SAGHMEALTRES (@)
(c) Guarantee for banking facilities (c) RMITRUEIER
On 9th May 2012, a wholly owned subsidiary obtained a R-_E——EF LB —BH2EHEBR
banking facility of US$4 million (equivalents to HK$31.2 AR -—EEBRITREEIRET SEER
millions) from a bank in Hong Kong for financing trade 178 & 4,000,000 7T (#H557231,200,0005%
transactions. The banking facility is guaranteed by the bank o) cRITREBEBRESEHLCEAMEANIR
deposits of HK$3,900,000 owned by a director Mr. Eav Yin. #715%3,900,0007%8 7T AT #E 4R -
(d) Other transactions (d) Hithxx5
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
g3 FET FET
Sales of watch movements to HEFH&MET
a related company ultimately BLEEEEFERERR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin I ETEH 2
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin —HEERA 1,869 4,471
Purchase of watch movements from MG CEEEFREESR
a related company ultimately R e
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin 2 —ERERT]
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin R F RN 359 -
Provision of subsidised advertising REESEPR

and marketing support to
two related companies ultimately
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin

ISR R
THCEEZFREER
NG R

and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 MEEERR (i) 3,158 1,950
Leasing of offices and warehouses to HERAEREET

three related companies ultimately BLEEEZFREER

owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin R 512 5 A 12

and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin Z =HERA A (ii) 1,888 1,428
Purchase of products from MBCEEETFHRERER

four related companies ultimately SR

owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin Z P RgE A A

and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin REBE M (iii) 2,341 8,865
Consultancy fee paid to SIEME TSR EE

a related company ultimately EFREHEER

owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin 1512 de A 1

and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 2 —fEEERA 890 571
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Other transactions (Continued) (d)

Note:

(i) Provision of subsidised advertising and marketing
support services

During the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2013,
the Group participated in the marketing programs and
activities for promoting and enhancing the image of
branded watches supplied by Lucky Linker Limited
and one related company. In return, Lucky Linker
Limited and one related company subsidised the Group
by paying an advertising subsidy to the Group. The
subsidy from the one related company was an one-off
transaction during the year.
(ii) Leasing of offices and warehouses
The Group leased an office space to Lucky Linker
Limited, being one of the three related companies,
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin, during the years ended 31st
March 2014 and 2013. Lucky Linker Limited is a long-
term tenant of the Group and taken into the fact that
Lucky Linker Limited is responsible for the decoration
of the office, the Group offered a discount on the rental
charge for compensating the costs incurred by Lucky
Linker Limited in decoration of the office.

As at 31st March 2014, commitments under operating
leases receivable from the companies over which
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and

36. EABAMEALRS (@)

Hithx2 5 (£8)

(U]

(i)

RUESEMRDIZHERIERE

RIE—=FR-_T-—NF=A=+—
AIEFE BB NEE 2L HBLucky
Linker Limited X —EBEQRIIRHE 2
TSR 2 KB 8 - DR R Inog
m e F & AR o X ZELucky Linker
Limited &z — I BAE A Al M AN & B = 1+
EERAIEREDASEE - RFR - —

RIRE AR Z A — RN S -
AEHAZREE
R-B-—ZFR-FT-mE=A=+—
AFEEE AEERERAS

Lucky Linker Limited (Ai5{Z%4E2E
FHREWE MG AR =EEER
A] 2 H R —f&) ° Lucky Linker Limited
BAEEZ RHMEF - WEEELucky
Linker LimitedB EREHAE - A&
ERHMNTESEBITNAR A ELucky
Linker Limited2 (S 9 N EEHE Z AN ©

EA:§ ME=A=+—H" BREL
HESWEKRAR (BHECEEETF
Fiﬁl%ﬁﬁéﬂm TS 2 A E) I

controlled by Mr. Eav Yin were as follows: REEGENT
2014 2013
—E-HmE —F=%F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Not later than one year R—FRA 1,639 1,479

Later than one year and HBA—FRTHBEBRE

not later than five year 1,762 3,308
3,401 4,787

Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from 1 to 3 years (2013: 3 to 5 years) and related
commitments are included in Note 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

B §5 ER R B 5F

36. EARMEALRS ()

(d) Other transactions (Continued) (d) Hthx5 (&)
Note: (Continued) e - (&)
(iii) Purchase of products (iii) FHBES
The Group purchased of products from the above RZE—=FR-_ZF—NF=A=+—
related companies during the years ended 31st HIEFEHE AEEHR FAEEA
March 2014 and 2013 which represented watches, FREEREETFE FTERERAEI
watch spare parts and components (including watch fRAEH (BREFHEED)  EREY
movements), watch accessories and packaging. The R AREBETIINEFHRMAE - NI
Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing NEERY Gl T EatEgE A
and after-sales services such as maintenance and TRERGEE REEMBREZER
repairs to the above related parties. The purchase BHEBERNEKE -
of products includes the fees and charges for these
services.
(e) Balances with related parties (e) RIEALLZER
2014 2013
—E-lmF T4
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and other receivables due from BRECEEEF
two related companies BABEERBICAEEEZ
ultimately owned by the MEREATES RHEMER
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled
by Mr. Eav Yin 5,082 1,925
Trade payables due to three related ENBCEEZTTRAES
companies ultimately owned by the BB EEESZ
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled “HBEEARESER
by Mr. Eav Yin 1,606 16
Other payables due to a director of P& 1 EZEAndré Francois Meier%t £
Mr. André Francois Meier (Note) Z HE b A RRE (A at) 1,167 -
Note: At 31st March 2014, the amount due to a director was Kt - R=ZZF—WNF=A=+—H EBN—REZHRHE
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. BEEE P RIERERERER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

37.

38.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37. SEIRP
The assets pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group were e FRITEERMEENT -
as follows:
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Land and buildings T REF 733 3,198
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRE 524 20,833
Investment properties LEYE 137,900 151,676
Inventories FE 147,190 136,244
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFRITER 3,303 2,272
289,650 314,223
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 38. REiRfhiaTl{tst 2l

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees.

The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the
consolidated income statement represents contributions payable
to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the MPF scheme.

Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to
make the required contribution under the scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessor

Property rental income earned during the reporting period was
HK$5,089,000 (2013: HK$4,546,000). At 31st March 2014, the
properties held have committed tenants for lease terms from
0.11 to 2.54 years (2013: 0.11 to 3.46 years), whose tenancy
agreements include paying security deposits.

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under the
non-cancellable operating leases with the tenants falling due as
follows:

39.

B §5 ER R B 5F

MEIRERG

o

fERWEIRE

RS HBE 2 Y KA /&55,089,000%
TL(ZZF— =1 1 4,546,000/ 1) - R=_ZT—UF
ZA=Zt+—H BB ZYELERTERENT
0.MEFE254F (Z T —=Z4F : 01156 E3.46) 2
Y HEERREEIMNERES -

AEBRBEERTZ 2 TAIBHEEEMEL - K
K EERESERIBERNAT

2014 2013

—F-NF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not later than one year TE@R—F 3,519 4,155
Later than one year and not BB —F T HBIF

later than five years 2,648 4,566

6,167 8,721

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail outlets
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 0.07 to 6.62 years (2013: 0.08
to 7.62 years). Certain rentals for the use of retails outlets are
determined by reference to the revenue of the relevant outlets for
the year and the rentals for certain retails outlets will be escalated
by a fixed percentage per annum.

The Group’s lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancellable
leases of office and retail store space. Future minimum payments
under non-cancellable leases were as follows:

FRHMIAE

REERBSEHERHAESETHATUER
TE KR YWEMERR K0.07F £6.62
F(ZE—=F :0.08F£7.62F) - A TZTEH
MESEUNZFERBNTEINRAATE -
WEHEFZEHNHEEUBRTHFERER -

AEINHEEEFERETAHEINAE
ZTEFEME - BIET A HEEEE 2 KRS EN
AT

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Not later than one year TiEB@d—F 141,286 224,922
Later than one year and not s —FTHEA

later than five years HF 477,262 609,988

Later than five years HBiEAF 39,619 203,149

658,167 1,038,059
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing these financial statements, management is required
to exercise significant judgements in the selection and application
of accounting principles, including making estimates and
assumptions. The following is a review of the more significant
accounting policies that are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported
under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

a) Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i) Provision for store closure

The provision for store closure of the Group consists
of provisions for store closure costs, compensation to
landlords and other related costs.

The Group recognises and measures a provision for
store closure costs as a provision for onerous contract.
In accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, an onerous
contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received under
it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the
least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the
lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or
penalties arising from failure to fulfill it.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

a)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(i

(i)

Provision for store closure (Continued)

The Group recognises a provision for store closure
based on the estimated unavoidable costs of meeting
all leases and other obligations under the retail stores,
net of economic benefits expected to be received from
the stores, if any. The Group estimates the provision
based on the amount of compensation payment agreed
with the landlord as a result of early termination of
leases, unfulfilled lease obligations, and economic
benefits estimated to be received from fulfilling the
lease contracts. Management also consults with
retail agencies for certain locations in respect of the
current market trends. The Group also estimates the
provision based on past experience of payout ratio
of the total compensation to the landlords. Estimates
differ depending on the current rent, location, lease
exit terms and management’s assessment of when
the lease term can be terminated early and expected
benefits to be received from fulfilling the leases.
Except for stores which termination contracts have
already been agreed with the landlords, the settlement
of these contracts may be different from the Group’s
estimation subject to the negotiation with the landlords
and the economic benefits estimated to be received.
The Group recognises a provision for compensation to
employees when the Group has a detailed formal plan
for store closure and has communicated the plan to
the employees affected by it. The Group recognises a
provision for other related costs when obligations for
direct expenditures necessarily entailed by the plan
for store closure and not associated with the ongoing
activities of the Group arise.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based
on valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves
certain assumptions of market conditions. In relying
on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgment and are satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.

B §5 ER R B 5F

40. A% S 5HYIENR: {45t (48)

a) [EAKEESHBFZERYIE (&)

(i)

AR (E)

AEEERAEHERBEIRESE
EHAAMEHEEREMEMET A
AR E R - IR TE R B AT
MBI R EEME (INE) - REEG
AR EELIREBEEZFIERERILHE
- RETHESER  METHEHEAD
ity 515 JE 15 O 48 7 ) &5 T A8 E RO B 18
SR -EEENRRLMENZ AT
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14 7 & IR (AT B AT SR A 4% LR KR B AT
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REMAARE A EE -

REWEZ A7 E
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R §5 ER R B 5F

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 17 and 33 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to valuation of investment
property and fair value of share options granted. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)  Write-down of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write downs on inventories are recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification of
write downs requires the use of estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write downs of inventories in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed. As at 31st
March 2014, the carrying amount of inventories is
HK$469,341,000 (2013: HK$569,071,000).

(i) Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment losses is based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. Impairments are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may be uncollectible. The
identification of impairment loss requires the use of
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
original estimates, such difference will impact the
carrying value of receivables and impairment loss
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. As at 31st March 2014, the carrying amount
of trade and other receivables is HK$29,933,000 (2013:
HK$32,485,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i

Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group estimates its income tax provision
in accordance with the prevailing tax rules and
regulations, taking into account any special approvals
obtained from relevant tax authorities and any
preferential tax treatment to which it is entitled in each
location or jurisdiction in which the Group operates.
There are
which the

many transactions and calculations for
ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

The Group believes it has recorded adequate
current tax provision based on the prevailing tax
rules and regulations and its current best estimates
and assumptions. In the event that future tax rules
and regulations or related circumstances change,
adjustments to current taxation may be necessary
which would impact the Group’s results or financial
position. As at 31st March 2014, the carrying amount
of current tax payable and deferred tax liabilities are
HK$3,548,000 (2013: HK$3,137,000) and HK$6,736,000
(2013: HK$7,741,000) respectively.

B §5 ER R B 5F

40. RAR S5 FIERR (&5 (48)

b) fEHARARRMEZERKIE ()
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S ERRBAE

41.

42.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31st March 2014, the Company had given corporate
guarantee to a bank in connection with banking facilities
granted to the Group amounting to HK$130,000,000 (2013:
HK$161,200,000). Facilities utilized by the Group as at 31st March
2014 were HK$74,260,000 (2013: HK$130,096,000). The directors
of the Company considered that no recognition was required
because the fair value of such guarantee was insignificant and
that the directors of the Company did not consider it probable that
a claim would be made against the Company under the guarantee.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In April 2014, EHHEFRE (£8) ESEMRAF], a wholly owned
subsidiary, entered into a loan agreement (the “Agreement”) with
a bank in the PRC. Under the Agreement, the subsidiary was
granted a loan of RMB16 million (equivalents to approximately
HK$20 million) for a period of six months. The bank loan is
unsecured and has been used for purchase of inventories. &z
ZERW (L8) BHABMRAT repaid the outstanding bank loans of
RMB20 million, RMBO0.5 million and RMBO0.5 million on 11th April
2014, 16th June 2014 and 17th June 2014 respectively.
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43.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2014

Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2014.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

The Group is in the progress of making assessment of what
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded the adoption of them
is unlikely to have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures*

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities’

Amendments to HKAS 19  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?®

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Llabilities®

Impairment of Assets — Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets’

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting’

Levies'

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HKFRIC 21

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Clarification of Acceptable

Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2014 (Continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July
2014 with limited exceptions.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July
2014.

4 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are

finalised.

5 Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1st January
2016.

6 Effective for first period beginning on or after 1st January
2016.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEFEWRHHB

For the year ended 31st March 2014 #HE—-ZT—NFE=A=+—HILFE

RESULTS

¥ xE
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—-HLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E-TF —ET——F —T-—F -—T-=F CZB-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FE T
Turnover B 777,464 1,035,326 1,036,249 1,098,593 967,353
(Loss)/profit before taxation K& AT (E18) % 7 56,834 113,876 (50,728) (208,351) (152,990)
Income tax Frig % (5,603) (16,431) (10,042) (393) (196)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BE) =5 51,231 97,445 (60,770) (208,744) (153,186)
Equity attributable to RPN
owners of the Company KRABHFRABA 51,231 97,445 (60,770) (208,746) (153,278)
Non-controlling interests IR R - - - 2 92
51,231 97,445 (60,770) (208,744) (153,186)
Basic (loss)/earnings BREXR(EBR) BT
per share 1.71¢ 3.18¢ (6.12)¢ (20.76)¢ (11.21)¢
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEWFERE

For the year ended 31st March 2014 #HE—-ZT—FE=A=+—HILFE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at 31st March

R=A=+—H

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

TE-FE ~—FT-——F ~—FT-—F ~“FT-=F ZE-NOF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET FEor FEor F#ET

Total assets BB E 520,351 789,079 1,075,672 1,053,139 840,152

Total liabilities FEN=R 115,044 228,977 527,356 506,112 433,672

Net assets BEFH 405,307 560,102 548,316 547,027 406,480
Equity attributable to NN

owners of the Company BAEAZER 405,307 560,102 538,609 537,318 396,679

Non-controlling interests IEIE R AR R = - - 9,707 9,709 9,801

Total equity 48 W 2 FE 405,307 560,102 548,316 547,027 406,480
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